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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:- (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after
due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
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Cayman Islands
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Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
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AUDITORS
CCIF CPA Limited

STOCK CODE
8270

EREANSERIEERLR

&5
#

AP B
KR EHB02E

A EE
Century Yard
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive

P. 0. Box 2681 GT
George Town
Grand Cayman
British West Indies

TEROBFERE

Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.0. Box 705

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

EEROBFELTTRE

BREBAERAT
BB

ERKERIR

K& ESF 2812

EEAERRIT
B LSEY RITARA A
HIEEERTERAT

2L
RESEHAEBHERAR

B3 1R 5R

8270



TEBRRESREARLF

CORPORATE PROFILE
AL

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
currently conduct the business of research and development
and sales of software solutions principally through Fujian Shine
Science & Technology Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Shine Science
& Technology Co., Limited whose operations are located in
China (the “PRC"), as well as the new businesses of
manufacture and sales of liquefied coalbed gas through Shanxi
Qinshui Shuntai Energy Development Company Limited whose
operations are also located in the PRC. The Company was
incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability in July 2002 and was initially listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 12 August 2003.

The Group is principally engaged in two businesses: (1)
research and development of software solutions specially
targeting the financial and securities sectors in the PRC. (2)
production and sales of liquefied coalbed gas. Headquartered
in Beijing, the Group has a development and servicing network
covering cities including Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and
Fuzhou where the national stock exchanges and majority of
the financial institutions’” headquarters are based. The
comprehensive spectrum of the Group’s software solutions was
centrally developed in our software development centres in
Fuzhou and Shanghai, and implemented, customized and
supported by our local servicing teams. The Group’s production
of liquefied coalbed gas is in Shanxi Qinshui Basin which boasts
the richest liquefied coalbed gas, while its distribution network
extends to Shanxi, Guangxi and Guangdong Provinces, etc. In
particular, Guangxi Beiliu Gas Company Limit acquired by the
Group in July 2009 has enabled the Group’s coalbed gas to
reach the end-user market.

In order to better utilize resources and focus on more profitable
new energy coalbed gas business, the Group will start to strip
its software solution R&D business for the financial and
securities industries in the coming year. Once the stripping is
completed, the Group will devote all the resources and efforts
to expanding its presence in the natural gas and coalbed gas
liguefying industry chain so as to maintain its leading position
in China’s natural gas market.

The Group will adhere to the principle of “social responsibility
is of overriding importance” while exploring and developing in
the new energy sector with the aim to provide the world with
high-quality clean energy and keep improving and promoting
the harmonious coexistence of man and nature.
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(;HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the audited financial results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2009.

OPERATION REVIEW

COMPUTER AND SOFTWARE BUSINESS IN THE
SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL INDUSTRY

Benefited from the gradual recovery of China’s economy and
the development of China’s financial market last year, the
securities market came out of the downturn, with SSE
Composite Index climbing from 1820 at the beginning of the
year to 3277 at the year end. In 2009, the Group’s software
solution R&D business for China’s financial and securities
industry improved, driven by increased demand for upgrading
IT systems as securities firms placed more emphasis on the
management of investors’ accounts, coupled with the Group'’s
leading position in the industry and the launch of new
settlement products.

LIQUEFIED COALBED GAS BUSINESS

In 2009, with enormous market demand unsatisfied, natural
gas supply in China remained tight. The coalbed gas-liquefying
plant invested and set up by the Group in Shanxi was completed
and put into trial production in midyear. After debugging and
adjustment of the equipment during the trial production, the
plant has been operating well. However, the plant is not
operating in full capacity due to the abnormally sustained cold
weather at the end of last year and the beginning of this year
as well as the tight supply of upstream gas sources in the whole
market. The Group expects that this situation will be alleviated
soon and that the plant will operate in full capacity from the
second quarter this year. As prices kept rising and supply fell
short of demand in the natural gas end market in the fourth
quarter last year, sales income of the plant increased and
contributed to the improvement of the Group’s profits.
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

In order to capture market share more rapidly, the Group
acquired “Guangxi Beiliu Gas Company Limited” in Beiliu, a
city in Guangxi Yulin Prefecture famous for its ceramic industry.
The company is engaged in the supply of natural gas for
residential (pipeline gas) and commercial usage as well as
industrial usage for ceramic companies in Beiliu City. Given
the huge market demand for natural gas, the company will be
sure to help improve the Group’s earning performance in the
coming year.

OUTLOOK

The demand for natural gas in the Chinese market has been
enormous, and with the gradual recovery of China’s economy,
it will keep growing continuously. Backed by its leading position
in China’s natural gas-liquefying industry, The Group will
continue perfecting the industry chain of the natural gas-
liquefying industry, expanding businesses into the up-and
downstream industry in an effort to maintain the Group’s
leading position in China’s natural gas market and bring long-
term and stable returns to our shareholders.

In order to better utilize resources and focus on more profitable
new energy coalbed gas business, the Group has started to
strip its software solution R&D business in the financial and
securities industry. Once the stripping is completed, the Group
will devote all the resources and efforts in extending businesses
along the natural gas liquefying industry chain.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to avail myself of
this opportunity to express our heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business associates for their
continuous support for the Group.

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

26 March 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW
MARKET REVIEW

In this year, the Group mainly focused on the research and
development of software solutions for the finance and securities
industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Benefited from the gradual recovery of China’s economy and
the continual development of China’s financial market last year,
the securities market came out of the downturn, with SSE
Composite Index climbing from 1820 at the beginning of the
year to 3277 at the year end. In 2009, the Group’s software
solution R&D business for China’s financial and securities
industry improved, driven by increased demand for upgrading
IT systems as securities firms placed more emphasis on the
management of investors’ accounts, coupled with the Group’s
leading position in the industry and the launch of new
settlement products.

LIQUEFIED COALBED GAS BUSINESS

The coalbed gas-liquefying plant invested and set up by the
Group in Shanxi was completed and put into trial production
in midyear. After debugging and adjustment of the equipment
during the trial production, the plant has been operating well.
However, the plant is not operating in full capacity due to the
abnormally sustained cold weather at the end of last year and
the beginning of this year as well as the tight supply of upstream
gas sources in the whole market. As prices kept rising and
supply fell short of demand in the natural gas end market in
the fourth quarter last year, sales income of the plant increased
and contributed to the improvement of the Group’s profits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

With the official launch of ChiNext Board, E-SIM6.0, being one
of the Group’s key products, was managed to launch in a timely
manner to support the sub-system of the trading activities of
the ChiNext Board and to satisfy the business demands from
all our customers. Therefore, the E-SIM6.0 product contributed
significantly to the results of the Group during the year.

During the year, the Group’s key products: E-SIM6.0 acquired
14 new customers, the video system acquired 7 new
customers; with respect to the new products: accounting
system acquired 3 new customers, the debentures settlement
system acquired 1 new customer and the marketing system
acquired 1 new customer.

LIQUEFIED COALBED GAS BUSINESS

The demand for natural gas in the Chinese market has been
enormous, and with the gradual recovery of China’s economy,
it will keep growing continuously. Backed by its leading position
in China’s natural gas-liquefying industry, The Group will
continue perfecting the industry chain of the natural gas-
liquefying industry, expanding businesses into the up-and
downstream industry in an effort to maintain the Group’s
leading position in China’s natural gas market and bring long-
term and stable returns to our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of approximately
RMB92,034,000 for the year, representing an increase of
approximately 138% compared with last year. The increase
were mainly attributable to:

° the improvement of the securities market of the PRC
during the year, and active trading on the stock market
drove business development of the securities traders,
while the newly-added business function has also led
to the growth of the Group’s products sales.

o Due to the beginning of production and sales of liquefied
coalbed gas in Shanxi together with the sales of piped
natural gas and gas supply connection services, thus
create a significant increase of Group’s turnover.

Loss attributable to owners for the year was approximately
RMB58,830,000, compared with the loss attributable to owners
of approximately RMB33,585,000 for last year.

The increase in loss was mainly attributable to the following
reason:

° the impairment loss on goodwill during the very
substantial acquisition in mid of 2009 amounted to
approximately RMB52,971,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND
DEVELOPMENT PROSPECTS

During the year, under the influence of the duly launched
ChiNext Board, continuously favorable policy, etc., investors’
confidence was picked up and the Shanghai and Shenzhen
stock indexes were raised steadily. There was a growth in the
profit of the Group’s major customers in general, which brought
an opportunity for the Group’s growth.

Under the improving market condition, the Group proactively
carried out its own restructuring and engaged in R&D for new
products in a timely manner, in order to cope with the
transforming market:

o As at 31 December 2009, the Group had an aggregate
of 397 employees, of which 162 were research and
development staffs, 141 were engineering and
maintenance staffs, 67 were administrative staffs and
27 were marketing staff;

o The Group’s key products: E-SIM6.0 acquired 14 new
customers, the video system acquired 7 new customers;

o During the year, as the liquefied coalbed gas started
production and sales, it created a significant increase
in turnover. It is expected that this business will bring a
stronger increase in turnover and revenue of the group
in future.

The Directors believe that following the improvement of the
securities market, through its enhanced capacities in
technology and research and development, as well as
reinforcement in promotions of the Company’s professional
corporate image together with the liquefied coalbed gas
business’s production and sales, the Group’s business
prospects is very bright.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the Group mainly utilized internally generated
cash flow and proceeds from fund raising activities to satisfy
its operational and investing requirements.

Despite the difficult operating environment in the industry, as
at 31 December 2009, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB269,849,000, including cash and bank
deposit balance of approximately RMB96,292,000. The Group
has implemented prudent financial and risk managements. In
addition, the Group did not have any pledged assets as at 31
December 2009. After taking into account the Group’s existing
financial resources, it is expected that the Group’s existing
financial resources and cash flow from operating activities will
be adequate to satisfy the requirements from its continuing
operation, which will be used mainly in future investments in
product and technological development.

EMPLOYEES

During the year, the staff costs (including Directors’
remuneration) was approximately RMB28,735,000 (2008:
approximately RMB29,098,000).

The salary and bonus policy of the Group is principally
determined in accordance with the performance of the
individual employee. The Group will, on an ongoing basis,
provide opportunity for professional development and training
to its employees.

RISK IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The operations of the Group are located in the PRC and the
majority of its sales and purchases were denominated in
Renminbi. Therefore, there is no foreign exchange risk that
may affect the Group’s operating results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not have significant investment as at 31
December 2009.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

On 4th May 2009, the Group has executed an Acquisition
Agreement in respect of proposed acquisition of a liquefied
coalbed gas distribution and sale company in Guangxi Beliu.
The acquisition was completed on 3rd July 2009.

The Group did not have any material disposal during the year.

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO
MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSET

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has not executed any
agreement in respect of proposed acquisition during the year.

LIQUEFIED COALBED GAS
BUSINESS

The Group’s two coalbed gas-liquefying plants are developed
for liquefied coalbed gas business in the PRC. One of the
coalbed gas liquefying plant is in production and sales incurred.
It is expected that it will bring a long term source of revenue
for the Group.

As the growth of the PRC’s economy, the domestic demand
for fuel and resources has been expanding. Therefore, it is
expected that the liquefied coalbed gas business will have
promising prospect. It is anticipated that the liquefied coalbed
gas industry will provide the Group with a stable and new
revenue source and will further enhance the Company’s value,
as well as its shareholders’ return. In addition, diversifying into
a new business will broaden the Group’s revenue sources and
diversify the Group’s overall business risks.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

(A)

APPLICATION OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Group is committed to promoting good corporate
governance, with the objectives of (i) the maintenance
of responsible decision making, (ii) the improvement in
transparency and disclosure of information to
shareholders, (iii) the continuance of respect for the
rights of shareholders and the recognition of the
legitimate interests of shareholders, and (iv) the
improvement in management of risk and the
enhancement of performance by the Group. The Group
has applied the principles set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“HKSE Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM
Listing Rules”) with these objectives in mind.

PROMULGATION OF COMPANY’S
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

To this end, the Group has promulgated a set of Code
on Corporate Governance (“Company Code”) which sets
out the corporate standards and practices used by the
Group to direct and manage its business affairs. It is
prepared by referencing to the principles, code
provisions and recommended best practices set out in
the HKSE Code, which came into effect on 1 January
2005. In addition to formalizing existing corporate
governance principles and practices, the Company Code
also serves the purpose of assimilating existing practices
with benchmarks prescribed by the HKSE Code and
ultimately ensuring high transparency and accountability
to the Group’s shareholders.
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COMPLIANCE OF COMPANY AND HKSE’S
CODE’S PROVISIONS

The Group has complied with all provisions in the
Company Code and the HKSE Code with the deviations
mentioned below.

On 12 August 2005, the Company set up the following
board committees and adopted the company code,
being its own code on corporate governance:—

(a) Remuneration Committee;

(b)  Nomination Committee.

The Company Code contains all the Code Provisions of
the HKSE Code and other provisions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
those as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of the directors of the Company,
all directors have complied with the required standard of
dealings and code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors as set out in the code of conduct for the year
2009.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is entrusted
with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the
Company by the direction and supervision of the Company’s
business and affairs.

The Board comprises a total of seven Directors, with two
Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng
(Chairman) and Mr. Shi Liang; two Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and Mr. Ye Jinxing and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei
Kun, Mr. Yan Chang Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. Ms. Pang
Yuk Fong has appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and financial management expertise as required
under the Listing Rules.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

APPOINTMENT TERMS OF
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under Code Provision of the HKSE Code non-executive
directors should be appointed for specific terms, subject to
re-election. Currently, the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors have no set term of office
but are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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ROLES OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for appointing
and supervising senior management to ensure that the
operations of the Group are conducted in accordance with the
objectives of the Group. The principal roles of the Board are:

° to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies
and business plan;

° to monitor and control operating and financial
performance through the determination of the annual
budget; and

o to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of

the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board is directly accountable to the shareholders and is
responsible for preparing the accounts.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management
responsibility to the management staff under the instruction/
supervision of the Board.

The management staff of the Company are principally
responsible for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such
other acts as may be exercised and performed by the
Directors, save and except for those that may specifically
be reserved by the Board/or thee committees set up by
the Board for decision and implementation; or those
that may only be exercised by the Board pursuant to
the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
Laws and regulations.
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2. formulating and implementing policies for business
actives, internal controls and administration of the
Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company'’s strategies on its

business activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken
which may be inspected by any members of the Board
or the Board committees upon request.

The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic basis
to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(“CEO”)

Under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the HKSE Code, the roles
of chairman and CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr. Shi Liang is
holding the title of CEO. Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng is the Chairman
of the Board. The Board meets regularly to consider major
matters affecting the business and operations of the Group.
The Board considers that this structure will balance the power
and authority between the Board and management and
believes that this structure enables the Group to make and
implement decision promptly and efficiently.
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BOARD OPERATION

Regular Board meetings are held normally every three months,
with additional meeting arranged, if and when required. In
2009, the Board held 12 meetings. The attendance record of
each member of the Board is set out below:

EEgEF

EFg-ReS=EAEE X UEEFER
Zgrem EFEN _TTNFEET T
REH - BSEFENEBNHFELENT :

Attendance

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
ERBEE (FE)

Mr. Shi Liang

ekt

Non-executive Director:

HHTES

Mr. Kwok Shum Tim
PEIE AL

Mr. Ye Jinxing

e RgEsE

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BAFHTES

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
BEBRE

Mr. Yan Chang Ming
B R E

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
ZERFUL

Directors are free to contribute alternative views at meetings
and major decisions would only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict
of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed would not be counted in the quorum
of meeting and would abstain from voting on the relevant
resolution. Minutes of the Board/committee meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.
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11/12

9/12

2/12

10/12
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9/12

EENGLABHERTANER ERRER
SHEEFTCER LETHRRIGFEL - NESHE
ZFRNRZHEB A ROEE LR RFEN R
ERIAFEEEA D - ERESHETHAGH
EAE - WEARBRRBRNERRE B8
S EEENER RN RWERT  EFTMK
RER -



TEBRRESREARLF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHE

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with, and advising the Board on compliance matters.

DIRECTORS’ DUTIES

Every Director is kept abreast of his responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company:

° A comprehensive director’s handbook is issued to every
Director, which sets out guidelines on conduct by
making reference to the relevant sections of the statutes
or the GEM Listing Rules, and reminds Directors of their
responsibilities in making disclosure of their interests
and potential conflict of interests.

° Orientation programmes are organised for providing
induction to new Directors to help them familiarise with
the Company’s management, business and governance
practices.

° Management provides appropriate and sufficient
information to Directors and the committee members
in a timely manner to keep them apprised of the latest
development of the Group and enable them to discharge
their responsibilities. Directors also have independent
and unrestricted access to senior executives of the
Company.

CONDUCT ON SHARE DEALINGS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as referred to in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company, having
made specific enquiries to its directors and supervisors,
confirms that, throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2009, all directors and supervisors met the criteria
laid down in the said code for securities transactions by
directors.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

As mentioned above, a remuneration committee was
established on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following
purposes:—

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on policies and
structure for remuneration of directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(b)  to determine the remuneration packages for executive
directors and senior management and to make
recommendations to the board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of all of the
Company’s Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Yan Chang Ming (Chairman) and Ms. Pang
Yuk Fong. The duty of Remuneration Committee is to review
and determine the remuneration policy and packages of the
executive directors and executives.

In 2009, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set
out below:

EEMNE

bt HFMEEEER _ETAFNA+Z
BRY - ERBEMER :

(@) BMEFLSNAEEENZRIFMBRLE
B RRRIZIERMAERENERFHE
HEHFMEER  AEESRIES
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Attendance
HE =R
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
mEBSRE
Mr. Yan Chong Ming (Chairman) 1/1
BRALE (FE)
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong 1/1

ZEFRE
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During the meeting, members of the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the remuneration packages and overall benefits of
the Directors by taking into account factors such as
remuneration packages and benefits offered by comparable
companies, the respective contribution of each of the Directors
to the Group and the business objectives of the Group.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for
reviewing all relevant remuneration data and market conditions
as well as the performance of individuals and the profitability
of the Group, and proposing to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration and approval, remuneration packages for the
executive directors and executives.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

As mentioned above, a Nomination Committee was established
on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes:—

(a)  toreview the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

(b)  toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;
and

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or reappointment
of directors and succession planning for directors.

The Nomination Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Luo Wei Kun,
Mr. Yan Cheng Ming (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong.
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In 2009, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set
out below:

REZBEN_ZTTNFERIT-REH - 8ZE
BB ELEMT

Attendance
HE =R
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
BEERE
Mr. Yan Chong Ming (Chairman) 1/1
BRALE (FE)
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong 1/1
TEFLL

the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Company’s Board of Directors,
makes reference to criteria including, inter alia, reputation for
integrity, accomplishment and experience in the relevant
industry, professional and educational background, and
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest.
The Nomination Committee was satisfied with the existing
composition of the Company’s Board of Directors and
recommended no change in the near term.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was established on 28 July
2003 and is currently composed of all three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun,
Mr. Yan Chang Ming and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman). The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review the
Group’s annual reports, financial statements, interim reports
and quarterly reports; (b) To serve as a focal point for
communication between Directors, the external auditors and
internal auditors; (c) To assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by providing an independent review and
supervision of financial reporting, and the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system; and (d) To review the
appointment of external auditors on an annual basis as well as
to ensure independence of the continuing auditor.
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In 2009, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set
out below:

EREBRNBENFRBTMARE - 55
ERMANEEREMT

Attendance
HE =R
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 4/4
Mr. Yan Chong Ming 3/4
BRALE
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong (Chairman) 4/4
CTEFZT(ER)

At the meetings, the Audit Committee has carefully reviewed
the Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results and
its system of internal control and has made suggestions to
improve them. The Committee also carried out and discharged
its other duties set out in HKSE Code. In the course of doing
so, the Committee has met the company’s management and
qualified accountant several times during 2009. Each member
of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the Group’s
external auditors and the Management.

During the financial year 2009, the audit committee has held
four meetings. The Group’s results for the year 2009 have been
reviewed and commented by the audit committee members.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of the annual accounts which give a true and fair view of the
Group’s state of affairs of the results and cash flow for the
year. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31
December 2009, the Directors have:

° adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

° made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and ensured the accounts are prepared on
a going concern basis.
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The company recognises that high quality corporate reporting
is important in reinforcing the trust relationship between the
company and the its stakeholders and aims at presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in all corporate
communications. The annual, interim and quarterly results of
the Company are announced in a timely manner within the
required limits after the end of the relevant periods.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control over
financial, operational and compliance issues for the year 2009.
The Audit Committee concluded that, in general, the Group
has set up a sound control environment and installed necessary
control mechanisms to monitor and correct noncompliance.
The Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is
satisfied that the Group in 2009, fully complied with the code
provisions on internal controls as set forth in the Code.

In order to maintain a high quality of Corporate Governance,
the Group employed a Qualified Accountant in current year
and will still employ a Qualified Accountant in the coming years.
The Audit Committee also concluded that the Group has
employed sufficient staff for the propose of accounting,
financial and internal control.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s external auditors are CCIF CPA Limited. The Audit
Committee is mandated to ensure continuing auditors’
objectivity and safeguard independence of the auditors, and it
has:

o determined the framework for the type and authorisation
of non-audit services for which the external auditors may
provide. In general, the engagement of the external
auditors to perform non-audit services is prohibited
except for tax related services; and
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o agreed with the Board on the policy relating to the hiring
of employees or former employees of the external
auditors and monitored the applications of such policy.

During 2009, the fees paid to the Company’s external auditors
for audit services amounted to RMB486,000.

The Group has not employed any staff who was formerly
involved in the Group’s statutory audit.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Group recognizes the importance of shareholder feedback
and the need for ongoing communication with its stakeholders,
including the general public, investors, and the institutional
and individual shareholders. The Company published annual,
interim and quarterly reports which contained detailed
information about the Group. Inquiries by shareholders are
directed and dealt with by senior management of the Group.
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DIRECTOR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), aged 47, has been
appointed as Chairman of the Board, an executive Director
and the compliance officer of the Company since May 2006.
From 9 January 2004 to 26 May 2006, Mr. Wang was an
executive director of Tianjin Tianlian Public Utilities Company
Limited (“Tianjin Tianlian”), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8290),
and was responsible for its business strategies. He graduated
from the University of Tianjin with a bachelor degree in
engineering in 1984. Mr. Wang is also a director of Tianjin
Leason Investment Group Company Limited (K32 v Bé 5% 4%
EEBEARAA). Mr. Wang is a director of Jumbo Lane
Investments Limited and is beneficially interested in 92% of
the entire issued share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the company which holds
332,790,000 Shares, representing approximately 24% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang is deemed to be interested in these
332,790,000 Shares under the SFO.

Mr. Shi Liang (“Mr. Shi”), aged 42, has been appointed as an
executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Shi graduated with a
bachelor degree in Material Science in the Shanghai University
of Science and Technology of the PRC and a master degree in
management from the Business School of the People’s
University in the PRC. He was a vice general manager of Tianjin
Tianlian. He had worked for Jiangsu Nan Tong Electric Melter
Company and Electronic Industrial Division Basic Products
Department. He had also worked for Jiangsu Hua Yong
Electronic Group Company as deputy manager of international
cooperation department and secretary to the board of directors.
He had also held various positions as a project manager, senior
manager and an assistant to executive director in the
investment banking of United Securities Limited, a securities
company in the PRC. Mr. Shi owns approximately 4% interest
in Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ye Jinxing, aged 43, has been a director of the Company
since July 2002 and was redesigned as a non-executive
Director on 16 May 2006. He is a senior economist. He joined
the Group in October 2000 and has been in charge of the
Group’s overall financial management, strategic capital
planning and treasury functions of the Group. Mr. Ye previously
held various managerial positions at the Quanzhou City Branch
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China in Fujian Province
from 1990 to 1994 and Minfa Securities Company Limited from
1994 to 1999. Mr. Ye has over 15 years of experience and in-
depth knowledge in domestic banking, capital and money
markets. Mr. Ye was awarded a bachelor’s degree in economics
from the Jiangxi College of Finance and Economics in 1990.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 36, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Kwok is
currently the company secretary and chief financial officer of
Tianjin Tianlian. Mr. Kwok graduated from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and also obtained a
master degree in China Business Studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Kwok has experience in the field of
audit, corporate finance and financial management, Mr. Kwok
is a director of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and owns
approximately 4% interest in Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Luo Wei Kun, aged 71, has been a director of the Company
since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua University
with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1964 and started
postgraduate studies in the same year. He was awarded a
postgraduate diploma in civil engineering in 1967. He acted
as a technician in Wuhan Branch of the Chinese Medicine
Industrial Limited during 1968 to 1969 and as a technician,
deputy section chief, section chief, engineer and vice chief
engineer in the State Ministry of Medicine - Hubei Medical
Manufactory Branch during 1969 to 1985. He then worked as
a senior engineer, section chief and assistant factory manager
in Tianjin Second Coal Gas Factory during 1986 to 1992. From
1992 to 2000, he acted as a vice chief engineer in Tianjin
Utility Department and at the same time, worked as a chief
engineer in Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office. After his
retirement in March 2000, Mr. Luo acted as a consultant of
Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office and Tianjin City Gas
Planning Office. Currently, he is an independent non-executive
director of Tianjin Tianlian.

Mr. Yan Changming, aged 47, has been a director of the
Company since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua
University with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering in
1986. He also obtained a master degree in chemical
engineering from the Tsinghua University and University of
Ottawa in 1989 and 1994, respectively. Since 1994, he has
been acting as the President of Canada Cadavisa Investment
Consulting Inc. Currently, he is the vice president and secretary
general of the Chamber of Commerce of Chinese Western
Returned Association and the Canada Branch of Chinese
Western Returned Association. He is also the vice secretary
general of all Federation of Returned Oversea Chinese.
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Ms. Pang Yuk Fong, aged 44, has been a director of the
Company since August 2006. She is an experienced practicing
certified public accountant in Hong Kong with over 21 years’
professional experience in the accounting and auditing. She
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Pang holds a master of
professional accounting degree from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Ms. Pang’s professional career started
in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. She has been the principal
partner in Y. F. Pang & Co., Certified Public Accountants since
1990’s and the managing director of AMC First Plan
International Limited which is engaged in business advisory
services in the Asia Pacific region. Ms. Pang was appointed by
the Cuilong Copper International Holding Limited in 2006 as
its independent non-executive director.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Gu Yun, aged 59, was the division head of software
development. Ms. Gu graduated from the Xiamen University
in 1985 majoring in finance in the Department of Finance and
Banking. She joined the Group in December 1997 and assumes
responsibility for strategic planning and business development
of the Group. Before joining the Group, Ms. Gu worked in the
Fujian Branch of the People’s Bank of China from 1976 to
1992 and had been a vice general manager in Fujian Securities
Trading Centre. Ms. Gu has good and extensive business
connections and has a broad range of experiences in the
domestic securities and banking industries dating back to
1980s.

Mr. Lui Chi Keung, aged 53, has been appointed as the
company secretary, qualified accountant and authorized
representative of the Company since September 2007. Mr. Lui
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lui has over 27 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, financial and business
management.
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The directors of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited
(the “Company”) present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 47.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2009 are set out in the statement of financial
position on pages 49 to 51 respectively. The cash flows of the
Group are set out in the consolidated cash flow statement on
pages b3 and 54.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Liang

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim
Mr. Ye Jinxing

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
Mr. Yan Chang Ming
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng and Mr. Shi Liang shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on page 28
to page 31 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are
determined by the Company’s board of directors with reference
to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

(i On 4 May 2009, the Company entered into a
capitalisation agreement with Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng,
an executive director of the Company, pursuant to which,
capitalisation shares, amounting to 55,543,750 new
shares of the Company (the “Capitalisation Shares”),
were to be issued to Mr. Wang at the capitalisation price
at approximately HK$0.32 per capitalisation share, as
repayment of the entire amount of the shareholder’s
loan, being an approximate sum of HK$17,774,000
(including interest accrued), due from the Company to
Mr. Wang (the “Capitalisation Agreement”). The
Capitalisation Shares represent approximately 8.95%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 4 May
2009.

The above capitalisation constituted a connected
transaction on the part of the Company under Rule
20.13 of the GEM Listing Rules and was subject to,
among other things, the approval of the independent
shareholders of the Company.
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(ii)

On 26 June 2009, as certain condition in the
Capitalisation Agreement had not been satisfied up to
26 June 2009, the parties to the Capitalisation
Agreement agreed to terminate the Capitalisation
Agreement by mutual consent so as to avoid the
uncertainty as to whether the Capitalisation would be
proceeded or not. The Board considers that the
termination of the Capitalisation Agreement has no
material adverse impact on the existing business
operations of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no other contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business subsisted
at the year-end or any time during the year to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors of the Company or the management
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest

(i)
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in a business which causes or may cause any significant
competition with the business of the Group.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EHARERE
BREBARRBAARBGEHER - IRESHMA -
MAREBH - ARREHITRABERERSD
5% RNFEANLRE -

Based on Information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public
as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests of the Director and
chief executive of the Company and each of their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules), in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which such Director or
chief executive is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

(1) LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES
OF THE COMPANY:

EERFETHRAERRKRG -
ERORES 2ERIAR

R-ZZEZNFT_A=1+—8B ARREFHE
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Number of shares/ Approximate %

Name Capacity Nature of Interest underlying shares of shareholdings
#E 5t BEME RO/ HEBERGEE ERBAEDI
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Interest of controlled Corporate interest 332,790,000 24.44%
corporation (Note)
TRBEE RErEER NGIL: 324 (Ht3t)
Beneficial Owner Personal 274,822,118 20.18%
ERBEBA f&A

Note: Such shares are owned by Jumbo Lane Investments

Limited.

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 92% interest in the issued
share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and he
is taken to be interested in the shares owned by Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited pursuant to Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).
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LONG POSITION IN SHARES OF
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS OF THE
COMPANY:

RIEECEERD 2R -

Percentage of
interests in the registered
capital of the

Director Name of associated corporation Nature of Interest associated corporation
CEAE P i)

HE HEEEER Emng ExzEZEDE

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 92%

(Note)

TABEE BERERRAR (M) fEA

Mr. Kwok Shum Tim Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 4%

MR LE EEREARRAT (EPN

Mr. Shi Liang Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 4%

I 5e k& EEREARRAT (BN

Note: Jumbo Lane Investments Limited is a holding Company Wiet - BEBREAERARAAEEZIERAR

of the Group, owns 24% of the shareholding of the Group.
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 92% interest in the issued
share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited. Mr.
Shi Liang and Mr. Kwok Shun Tim each own 4% in the
issued share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are
aware, as at the 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and
each of their respective associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which the Director
or chief executive is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(3) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS B) FERXE

As at the 31 December 2009, so far as is known to the RZEZENF+_A=+—H ' LAQF

Directors and the chief executive of the Company, the EEZRFTETBABRA S TIALER

following persons, other than a Director or chief ﬂ%%ﬁiﬁ’:fﬁj\ﬁﬁ’?ﬁl\)Tﬁﬁ’fﬁbﬁ*ﬁ

executive of the Company, had an interest or a short NEIEEBIEXVE E 23D B BRIAR
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which WREoERIAR _JZEE_JZFW%%EEW
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the RN REMBR N EASE B (A EMm
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or RE AR ZRERE ERE 7 EAERKR
was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of REELIOW A L2 RBKE - HFFE
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying ZERA 2 AR

rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings

of any other member of the Group, or held any option

in respect of such capital:

Long positions in shares BB zHE

Percentage of

Name Number of Shares Nature of Interest shareholding

®H gniggE| ERME RESNEI L

Jumbo Lane 332,790,000 Beneficial owner 24.4%

Investments Limited (Note 1)

BEREBRAR (K71 EnEAA

Ms. Zhao Xin (Note 2) 607,612,118 Interest of spouse 44.62%

WLt (K2 [RY i

Notes: BtaE -

1. The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Wang 1. N X EEREm R EEREET
Zhong Sheng in the paragraph headed “Directors’ BABREG, - BERMDRES 2 E=L
interests” and Chief Executive’s Interests or short portions KB —BPNEEAT BB E Y i -
in shares, underlying shares and debentures interests
above.

2. Ms. Zhao Xin (the spouse of Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng) is 2. RIBEFEFREERN - BE Lt (8B

£ 2 BB IVEIR AR AR AL R B 1R
2 DHRMEERABRATR
FRMAEENEEEA AL DRE 2 AR
B15 -

deemed to be interested in her spouse’s interest in the
Company which represent the same parcels of Shares
respectively held by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng as beneficial owner pursuant to
the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company,
other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, who, as at 31 December 2009, had an
interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group or
held any option in respect of such capital.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
and chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the top five customers of the Group
together accounted for approximately 39.8% of the Group’s
total sales for the year while the single largest customers
accounted for approximately 13.1% of the Group’s total sales
during the year.

The top five suppliers of the Group for the year under review
together accounted for approximately 73.8% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year and the single largest supplier
accounted for approximately 42.1% of the Group’s total
purchases.
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None of the directors, their respective associates or any
shareholders of the Company who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interests in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers above mentioned.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2009.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particular of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
warrants or instruments carrying other similar rights as at 31
December 2009.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SHARES

On 22 September 2009, the Company allotted and issued
371,308,507 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by way of an
open offer at HK$0.20 per share (“Open Offer”). Under the
terms of the Open Offer, the consideration of 174,943,445 offer
shares of approximately HK$34,989,000 (equivalent to
RMB30,782,000) was satisfied by discharging the Company
from its payment obligation to amount due to Mr. Wong Zhong
Sheng of RMB30,782,000 and the consideration for the
remaining offer shares under Open Offer was paid in cash.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 10 July 2009 and 22 September 2009 respectively and
the circular of the Company dated 31 August 2009.

On 17 December 2009, the Company allotted and issued
124,120,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by way of a
placement at HK$0.138 per share for cash. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 4 December
2009 and 17 December 2009 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2009, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
Shares.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 4 May 2009, the Company entered into a capitalisation
agreement with Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, an executive director
of the Company, pursuant to which, capitalisation shares,
amounting to 55,543,750 new shares of the Company (the
“Capitalisation Shares”), were to be issued to Mr. Wang at the
capitalisation price at approximately HK$0.32 per capitalisation
share, as repayment of the entire amount of the shareholder’s
loan, being an approximate sum of HK$17,774,000 (including
interest accrued), due from the Company to Mr. Wang (the
“Capitalisation Agreement”). The Capitalisation Shares
represent approximately 8.95% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 4 May 2009.
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The above capitalisation constituted a connected transaction
on the part of the Company under Rule 20.13 of the GEM
Listing Rules and was subject to, among other things, the
approval of the independent shareholders of the Company.

On 26 June 2009, as certain condition in the Capitalisation
Agreement had not been satisfied up to 26 June 2009, the
parties to the Capitalisation Agreement agreed to terminate
the Capitalisation Agreement by mutual consent so as to avoid
the uncertainty as to whether the Capitalisation would be
proceeded or not. The Board considers that the termination of
the Capitalisation Agreement has no material adverse impact
on the existing business operations of the Group.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 9 February 2010, the Company, as vendor, entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Chen Yi Lin (R %
#K), Mr. Hu Shu Zhen (8 & #&), Ms. Li Ling Li (42 ) and
Ms. Zhang Jing (3R &), who are independent individuals,
(collectively “the Purchasers”) (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to sell and the Purchasers have conditionally agreed to
acquire 100% of the issued share capital of Shine Science &
Technology (BVI) Company Limited (“Shine Science BVI”) for
an aggregate consideration of RMB60,000,000. Shine Science
BVI beneficially holds 100% equity interest in Fujian Shine
Science & Technology Co., Ltd. ((BE#F BRI AR A R])
Fuzhou Xinwangluo Network Company Limited (& N ¥7 = %7
4B R A 7)) and Shanghai Shine Science & Technology Co.,

Limited (/8% E# BB R A 7)), which together formed
the Shine Science Group, (the “Disposal”). Immediately after
completion of the Disposal, the Company will cease to hold
any interests in the issued share capital of the members of the
Shine Science Group and the Shine Science Group will cease
to be subsidiaries of the Company.

The Disposal constitutes a very substantial disposal on the part
of the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules
and is subject to the requirements of announcement and
approval of the shareholders of the Company.
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A circular containing, among other matters, (i) details of the
Disposal and the Sale and Purchase Agreement; (ii) the
financial information of the Group as required by the GEM
Listing Rules; (iii) a valuation report; and (iv) a notice of the
EGM will be despatched to the shareholders of the Company
as soon as practicable in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 11 February 2010.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. CCIF
CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

By order of the Board

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

26 March 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA
LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO.,
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 47 to 187, which comprise the consolidated and
Company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED
RESEE S HEAAERASE
34/F The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2(b)(ii)
in the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB58,741,000 during the year ended 31
December 2009 and as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB49,646,000. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2(b)(ii), indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2010

Ho Chun Shing
Practising Certificate Number P04396
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

47

2009 2008
—EBhF —BENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEaE ARE TR ARETF T
Turnover = 2 5 92,034 38,598
Cost of sales 5 & X AR (57,601) (34,142)
Gross profit EF 34,433 4,456
Other revenue and net income H bz RF WA 6 10,646 2,677
Distribution costs SaN = 1D N (3,441) (5,902)
Administrative expenses TR (35,744) (25,216)
Other operating expenses H b &5 (3,195) (7,373)
Finance costs BhE R A 7(c) (4,296) (1,903)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 15 (52,971) —
Loss before income tax MRETSH AT A8 7 (54,568) (33,261)
Income tax Frig i 8 (4,262) (324)
Loss for the year REEEIE (58,830) (33,585)

Attributable to: T3 FEAL -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZF N 11 (58,741) (33,585)
Minority interests DER R R (89) —
Loss for the year AEEEIE (58,830) (33,585)
RMB (cents) RMB (cents)
AR® (2) AR (5)
(Restated)
(&=&E5)

Loss per share BRER

Basic and diluted R K #5E 13 (6.29) (4.73)

The notes on pages 55 to 187 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2009 2008
—2ENEF —BENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Loss for the year REEEFIE (58,830) (33,585)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHM2EKE
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEBYBmE
financial statements of foreign entities ZEHZER (79) (464)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZEKZATE (58,909) (34,049)
Attributable to: T 5| FE4h -
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE7Z =N (58,820) (34,049)
Minority interests DEIR R R (89) —
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZHEKFETE (58,909) (34,049)

The notes on pages 55 to 187 form part of these financial

statements.

FE55EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R &

At 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) R=ZZhF+-A=+—8 AARKE)

2009 2008
—2ENEF —BENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARE TR AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Goodwill [EE 15 23,831 —
Investment properties REYE 16 7,330 —
Property, plant and equipment W - SRR 17(a) 252,932 134,772
Prepaid lease payments for land EBL IR
under operating leases T % 18 25,819 13,983
Intangible assets EBVEE 19 69,687 —
Deposits for acquisition of property, URBE 2 - HEES
plant and equipment EEREE & 20 7,000 7,000
Deposits for acquisition of interests WHg L EEAT
in land under operating leases TSR & 21 8,475 1,311
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 23 4,800 4,800
Deferred tax assets EETRIEE E 34(b) 1,427 1,169
401,301 163,035
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments for land A4 TR
under operating leases TS 18 608 363
Trading securities B5%ES 24 582 16,071
Inventories "E 25(a) 4,976 969
Trade and other JrE U BR 3k 2 Eo A
receivables JE WK1 26 39,276 18,630
Tax recoverable A EF IR 27 1,990 692
Fixed bank deposits IRITEBF R 28 — 7,164
Cash and cash equivalents HehBRESEEY 29 96,292 32,215
143,724 76,104
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other FEASTBR 3R R Ho A
payables NG 30 128,417 74,090
Deferred income JRIEUT A 31 8,832 3,713
Bank and other borrowings due —F AR 2 R1T
within one year K E A AR 32 52,000 40,000
Tax payable FE IR 34(a) 4,121 1,206
193,370 119,009
Net current liabilities REBAEFEE (49,646) (42,905)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBEE 351,655 120,130
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a R AR T AR

At 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) R=ZZhF+-A=+—8 AARKE)

2009 2008
—EBhF —FENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR T ARETF T
Non-current liabilities FERBEAE
Bank borrowings IRITIE 32 13,000 —
Promissory notes A B 33 51,296 =
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAE 34(b) 17,510 —
81,806 —
NET ASSETS EEZFE 269,849 120,130
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXRE #E
Share capital e 35(b) 12,921 6,399
Reserves fEf 35(a) 254,401 113,731
Equity attributable to owners PiNNETE7Z =N
of the Company el = 267,322 120,130
Minority interests LHRRE S 2,527 —
TOTAL EQUITY R 269,849 120,130
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors EBE@R -—ZT—ZF = — +/xBIEMRET
on 26 March 2010. % o
Wang Zhong Sheng Shi Liang
T BB =
Director Director
EE 2
The notes on pages 55 to 187 form part of these financial ~ Z5558 £ 1878 2 M st 4Bk BA F R E p 217 -

statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B AR R

As at 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) R —=ZZAE+=-A=+—8 CAARKZIE)

2009 2008
—ZBhF —BENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE AR T ARETF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - SRR 17(b) 883 1,218
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZZE 22 112,873 110,233
113,756 111,451
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other JE W BR SR R oAt
receivables JE U 3k E 26 164,605 25,234
Cash and cash equivalents BHehBREEEY 29 29,443 785
194,048 26,019
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other e BR 3R M Ho A
payables B 30 (1,685) (21,593)
Net current assets RBEEFE 192,363 4,426
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABARG 306,119 115,877
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Promissory notes A B 33 (51,296) —
NET ASSETS EEZRE 254,823 115,877
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGHE
Share capital [N 35(b) 12,921 6,399
Reserves e 35(a) 241,902 109,478
TOTAL EQUITY R 254,823 115,877
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors EEER T —TF= A -+ BHLEREET
on 26 March 2010. 3o
Wang Zhong Sheng Shi Liang
T o i
Director Director
- -

The notes on pages 55 to 187 form part of these financial ~ 25558 £ 1878 2 M st 4B BA IR E P 217 -
statements.



&INA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) HE —Z %

Attributable to owners of the Company

NFEFZA=+—HBILFE RARKFIE)

AATREAEL
Share Share Merger General Translation ~ Accumulated Minority Total
capital premium Teserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
& RivaE AlER ] AERE ZiEE &t HuRRES g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETn  ARETr  ARETn  ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETn
At 1 January 2008 RZEZNE-F-A 5922 100,835 (2,351) 5,31 (4n) (2,621) 106,659 — 106,659
Comprehensive income 2Ehs
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - - (33,585) (33,585) - (33,85)
Other comprehensive income HA2EkE
Bichange differences on translation 5N ERHK
of financial statements of foreign enties  HFZEAZE - - - - (464) - (464) - (464)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - - (464) (33,585) (34,049) = (34,049)
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Issue of new Shares B1Hki
— Share placement —RiiE 47 47223 - - - - 47,700 - 47,700
Transaction costs attributable to BROER
issue of new shares RAMA - (180) - - - - (180) - (180)
Total transactions with owners AEEAZRAHE 477 47,043 = = = = 47520 = 4750
At 31 December 2008 and RZFENE
1 January 2009 tZA=t-8k
“TENE-A-H 6,399 147878 (2,351) 5,31 (935) (36,212) 120,130 — 120,130
Comprehensive income 36
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - - (58,741) (58,741) (89) (58,830)
Other comprehensive income A2EkE
Bichange diferences on franslaion of ~ BEFHEBEE
financial statements of foreign entiies ~ HFRZERZE - - - - (79) - (79) - (79)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEES - - - - (79) (58,741) (58,820) (89) (58,909)
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Issue of new shares Bk
— Acquisition of subsidiaries —hERELAR 2164 127,653 - - - - 129817 - 129817
— Open offer —DRRE 3,207 62,066 - - — - 65,333 - 65,333
— Share placement - RiRE 1,091 13972 - - — - 15,063 - 15,063
Transaction costs attibutable fo BRAES
issue o new shares RERE - (4,201) - - - - (4,201) - (4,201)
Minority interests arising from RENBARIE
acquistion of subsidiaries (note 38) 2 DERERH
(ht3t38) - - - - - - - 2616 2616
Total transactions with owners REEAZRAHE 6,522 199,490 — — — — 206,012 2,616 208,628
At 31 December 2009 R-EENE
t-A=1-A 12921 347,368 (2,351) 5,351 (1,014) (94,953) 261,322 2521 269,349
The notes on pages 55 to 187 form part of these financial ~ 25558 £ 1878 2 M st 4B BA IR E P 217 -

statements.



TEHBEERRESEERATF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2009 2008
= LI —22NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR®TR ARETT
Operating activities RExK
Loss before income tax BRAE T A ES 1R (54,568) (33,261)
Adjustments for: HTHEERE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #¥1%¥ - BERRXEZNE 7(b) 10,211 2,140
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments e TER
for land under operating leases TS 7(b) 456 344
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 7(b) 783 4,093
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREER 15 52,971 —
Impairment loss on property, mE - BERF
plant and equipment RERE 17(a) — 321
Impairment loss on intangible assets BEREAERESE 19 - 3,017
Interest income FEBA 6 (435) (513)
Net losses on disposal of property, plant HEME  EBRREE
and equipment ZERFS 7(b) 63 47
Gain from changes in fair value of investment ~ REMERAFE
properties 2yl 6 (151) —
Net realised and unrealised (gains)/losses BEOBFLEERRAER
on trading securities M%)/ BEFE 6 (1,650) 2,536
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEMCER SR E B 1R 26(e) 3,131 3,790
Write back of impairment loss on JE MR OB (B
trade receivables FBRED 26(e) (1,249) (839)
Write down of inventories MoRFE 25(b) 279 —
Interest expenses on bank and RITREAMER
other borrowings ZHBF 7(c) 524 59
Imputed interest expenses on promissory notes & Z 4% 7 FE S FI B 5 7(c) 2,368 —
Other borrowing costs HfEERAR 7(c) 1,404 1,844
Foreign exchange gain INEE I 5% (382) —
Operating cash flows before changes RITEEESEBA
in working capital IREBERE 13,755 (16,422)
Increase in inventories FEEM (3,074) (200)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and 0B 3% % L At PR MR SR IE
other receivables A,/ () 8,140 (4,224)
(Increase)/decrease in tax recoverable Al e e B IE (48 ) /R (1,298) 620
Increase in trade and other payables P11 BR 3R I L At B £ RIB E AN 42,405 30,307
Increase in deferred income YA 5,119 1,963
Cash generated from operations REXBELE RS 65,047 12,044
Tax paid EHHE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EREH (1,856) (2,784)
Net cash generated from operating activities E&XBELZHLBE 63,191 9,260
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #EZ T T NF+-_A=+—HLLFE (AAREZIE)

2009 2008
“ZThE —ZEN\E
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Pt AR®TrR ARETT
Investing activities REED
Payment for purchase of investment properties BB E R EME 2 708 (7,179) —
Payment for purchase of property, plant BEME BB RE
and equipment LR (43,779) (81,920)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HMEME - BBREE
plant and equipment FT{S5008 78 3
Prepaid lease payments for land SRS TN
under operating leases Tile (3,537) (767)
Payment for deposits for acquisition WEmE 4‘%%&?&
of property, plant and equipment W4 — (4,400)
Payment for deposits for acquisition of fEge fﬁ%ﬁ‘l—
interests in land under operating leases TR S 2 B (7,164) —
Payment for available-for-sale investment T uquTXﬁZT)\IE — (4,800)
Payment for purchase of trading securites ~ fE & BHIT (45,368) (118,045)
Proceeds from disposal of trading securities ﬁ’gm% %ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ 62,515 103,574
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due FEME 184217
from securities broker firms B () /B (18,985) 6,816
Decrease/(increase) in fixed bank deposits BITTBEFRD /(32 m) 7,164 (540)
Interest received B2 435 513
Cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WERBARZASRA 38 1,029 —
Net cash used in investing activities RETDHACEERE (54,791) (99,566)
Financing activities MEED
Net proceeds from issue of new shares ROIHMRAGRIBFE 45,413 47,520
Proceeds from new bank and other borrowings ~ #i&5R 1T R EMERZ IERE 12,000 40,000
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRERRITREMER - (7,960)
Interest paid on bank and other borrowings RITREMERZEFFE (524) (59)
Other borrowing costs paid HEREERA (1,404) (1,844)
Net cash from financing activities RETHELE RS TE 55,485 77,657
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
cash equivalents #im,/ (Bd) 63,885 (12,649)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R-—B-HB2BERREZEN 32,215 45,147
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXLBe¥E 192 (283)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=B=+-H
31 December ZEEREALEEY 29 96,262 32215

The notes on pages 55 to 187 form part of these financial E55HEE

statements.

1878 z M /B A B A sk B AR & 47
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 July
2002 under the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The shares of the Company are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section in the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are development and sales of computer software, resale
of computer hardware, provision of system integration
and maintenance services, manufacture and sales of
liguefied coalbed gas and sales of piped natural gas
and gas supply connection services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is set out below.

1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCI
B %5 ¥ 2R B =

AL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are or have become effective. It
has also issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on the changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements and going concern
concept

i) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2009
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis, except those
disclosed otherwise in the accounting
policies below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESBER®
POL'C'ES (Continued)

b)  Basis of preparation of the financial b) HMBEHRRGREERFELE
statements and going concern 8= )
concept (Continued)
i) Basis of preparation of the financial i) MERREHREE ()

statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity to HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a
significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in
the next year are discussed in note 4.
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B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements and going concern
concept (Continued)

i)

Going concern concept

The Group incurred a loss attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately
RMB58,741,000 for the year ended 31
December 2009 and as of that date, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately
RMB49,646,000. Nevertheless, the
directors had adopted the going concern
basis in the preparation of financial
statements of the Group based on the
following conditions:

1) The other borrowings comprised of
RMB10,000,000and RMB40,000,000
disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements were due for repayment
on 30 June 2009 and 27 August
2009 respectively in accordance
with the loan agreements signed
between the Group and a finance
company. However, up to the date
of approval of these financial
statements, the other borrowings
had been rolled over for a further
period and will be due for
repayment on 7 January 2011 and
27 February 2011 respectively. Up
to the date of issue of the auditor’s
report, the finance company has
not indicated its intention to
withdraw the facilities granted to
the Group;

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESBER®
POL'C'ES (Continued)

b)  Basis of preparation of the financial b) HERRFHEREERFELE
statements and going concern )
concept (Continued)

ii)  Going concern concept (Continued) i) BEKEHRS (@)

2)  Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, the 2) AEEXERWITE
chairman and executive director of EFTRBEED AR
the Group, has undertaken not to TEEXRAEEER
demand for the repayment of the RZZEZNF+ZA
amount due to him totalling to = +t—HERFEZR
approximately RMB817,000 as at HHRHFAHOARE
31 December 2009 until the Group 817,0007t * EEAS%E
is financially viable to do so; BB EERENEE

=yl

3) Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng has agreed 3) TARABEEEREM
to provide adequate financial REEIRMH T WIS
support to the Group to enable it TR CURERDE
to meet in full all its financial NRA R KRB
obligations as they fall due in the FIBMBEE &k

foreseeable future; and

4)  As detailed in note 44(b) 4) MW EE44(b)FTEF
subsequent to the end of the o R ERRE
reporting period, the Group REEKIEEH I
successfully made a placing of its Hﬁfﬁjﬁg SET1RKIE
new shares for net proceeds of mrEHARK

approximately RMB35,828,000. 35,828,0007T °
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AL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements and going concern
concept (Continued)

i) Going concern concept (Continued)

In light of the conditions of the Group, the
directors are confident that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations in order to maintain its
operating scale and meet its obligations
in the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. Accordingly, the
directors consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis. The
financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying
amount and reclassification of assets and
liabilities that might be necessary should
the Group be unable to continue as a
going concern.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
are presently exercisable are taken into account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests
(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions, and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly
or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to owners of the Company. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between minority interests and the owners of the
Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.

c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests
(Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed
the minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary,
the excess, and any further losses applicable to
the minority, are charged against the Group’s
interest except to the extent that the minority has
a binding obligation to, and its able to, make
additional investment to cover the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the
Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until
the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed
by the Group has been recovered.

Loans from holders of minority interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2(m), (n) or (r) depending
on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Goodwil

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefits from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(j)(ii)). In respect of
associates or jointly controlled entities, the
carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate
or jointly controlled entity and the investment as
a whole is tested for impairment whenever there
is objective evidence of impairment (see note
2(j)(ii)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of a business combination or an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
recognised immediately in income statement.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, an
associate or a jointly controlled entity during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.

e)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are
initially stated at cost, which is their transaction
price unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification.

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in income
statement as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
income statement. The net gain or loss
recognised in income statement does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in note
2(s)(iii) and (iv).

Investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(j)(i)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group and/or the Company commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

2.

e)

SEBR 2)

REBRIRAFE S 2EMIRE

AREERARBHRERES K
BAES (TRERERHEAR)
ZBERE R

REBMBRAES 2 RERNTIE
HEHRXSEFHARAE » BRIEQFEEE
ET;J‘EL‘MME%(EME{%@%T
BURITIZEBUR) 5T © By N XA
FISME RSN - A BIEEERZ HEK
Ao ZERERER TR T
/\*EABE

?XﬁEA?TT’EX%JﬂLZ‘%%i’JEﬂE
Eiﬁﬂr&?@ﬁni‘éﬁqﬁ@w o NEER
BRMERKRENSE ML
EABERNERE i‘%lﬁﬁéﬁm o R1B
¥2‘%Wﬁﬁuxuzﬂﬂéﬁ/¥%57’@%§2??
|EFTBRE 2 IR B F &
EZ%%%’%JEEB*ETEFﬁHZ(s)(m)&(lv)ﬁﬁ
B BRER °

RERKRARZ R CENERTS -
£ BTBERI M EREATE)
B R BB B B B 7 B B AR R
WEER (RHEE2()() -

BREBEBEYRAEB K SHARF]
AEEBE NEREEE ZBHE
%EU%@ZE%L}%HU/WE%HU °



TEHBEERRESEERATF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement
of financial position at fair value, unless they are
still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and their fair
value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the income
statement. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note
2(s)(v).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(j)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in income statement on the date of retirement or
disposal.

FTESTEEX ®

REM=

REMEDRRIEE R HER
FEmMEENLHE SEF 8
EREERRARERRAE 2L
b e R R RV IR B W) 5 Th B =k
P2 -

BREWMER RN FERUBERRART
B BRIFERImEMRDER #i2
FFERIESR - BERATERER
REERISEMBEE RIBR SN - HIREY
ERFELPAREMEREND
EMalBNEAAE - HREER
REER - HEMEZHEE WAL
FE2(s)(FTAL 5 R -

W% - RN RE

YR - s MBI AR R I
E MR EEBRRBBARNEIIR (R
BEEE2()(iD) ©

BERARHENE  KBELREERE
EEBD  HEERHEMEK
HFRERARRAECER IR
ZERANHE A RN ERRER -



66

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.

9)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

— Buildings held Over the shorter of

for own use unexpired term

of the leases

or 30 years

— Leasehold 2 - b years
improvements

— Pipelines 5 - 20 years

— Plant and machinery 5-10 years

— Computer equipment 3 -5 years

— Furniture and 5-10 years

equipment
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction and
pending installation and is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to finance
these assets during the period of construction or
installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time the relevant assets are completed
and are available for the intended use. When the
assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to other property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated above.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities
is capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Capitalised development costs are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated in the statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2(j)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to
income statement on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives which are
determined by the directors to be finite.
Capitalised development costs with finite useful
lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

— Exclusive right for piped 45 years
natural gas operation
— Computer software 5 years

development costs

Both the period and method of amortisation and
any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.

)

Lease assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if
the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to
the Group

Assets that are held by Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in income
statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term,
except where the property is classified as
an investment property (see note 2(f)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESBER®
POL'C'ES (Continued)

EERE

i)  Impairment of assets i

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities
(other than investments in subsidiaries:
see 2(j)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

REBRREIEZBS 2RER
Htt W RE 2 BB

REREEAES (RHE A
B2 BAERRIN + B20)(i) K
H 38 By N FE IR B JE WK 0R
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B REZEBERBRA
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—  significant financial difficulty of the — BBRABBEXRMK
debtors; 7R £

—  a breach of contract, such as a —  EH - ENHEXLE
default or delinquency in interest EWHEEARR

or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the — BBRATEEEERK
debtor will enter bankruptcy or ENETHMMBE
other financial reorganisation; 48 5

— significant changes in the

— B W5 KEX

technological, market, economic or FERIRBENEANE (L
legal environment that have an HEBAEKERNY
adverse effect on the debtor; and 2 Kk

—  asignificant or prolonged decline — BEBRAIEHAF

in the fair value of an investment
in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.

j)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

— For unquoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

— For trade and other current
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBR®
POLICIES (continued)
i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EBERE®
i) Impairment of investments in debt i) REBEBRABSFZ2RER
and equity securities and other HihEWRB 2 RE (&)

receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through income
statement. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have
been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the —
cumulative loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is
removed from equity and is
recognised in income statement.
The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in income
statement is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on
the asset previously recognised in
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in
income statement in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through income
statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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FTESTEEX ®

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

j)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in income
statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESBER®
POL'C'ES (Continued)

BEERE @)

i) Impairment of assets (Continued) )

i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

— goodwill;

— property, plant and equipment
(other than properties carried at
revalued amounts);

— prepaid lease payments for land
under operating leases;

— intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there
is any indication of impairment.

i)
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

j)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e., a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
income statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of a cash-generating unit are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.

2.

AL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESBER®
POL'C'ES (Continued)

i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EERE®
ii)  Impairment of other assets i) HEERE G

(Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses — BOREEE
In respect of assets other than EBUAINZ BEET
goodwill, an impairment loss is = ' WA EE U
reversed if there has been a BB BEETH
favourable change in the estimates WENZS - AR
used to determine the recoverable BEEE - 2 2R
amount. An impairment loss in BEEBAUTSED -

respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is BB B 1B B LAR 1B
limited to the asset’s carrying FFEEWERERBE
amount that would have been EBEmMREBEECE
determined had no impairment EREEAR - BE
loss been recognised in prior years. BB O 5t AR Z
Reversals of impairment losses are ERErFEZER
credited to income statement in the = o
year in which the reversals are
recognised.
iii)  Interim financial reporting and iii) FHMBRERREE
impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of BB RFTES EmARA -
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the REBERRBRE B4R
Group is required to prepare an interim 25 3455 P B B 75 3R 45 3t B R
financial report in compliance with HKAS FEEHANEA R Y B
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect e o RAPEER AEE
of the first six months of the financial year. ERERTBFERFEE
At the end of the interim period, the Group KA ZEERENR - #R
applies the same impairment testing, N g B2 (B E2() () &
recognition, and reversal criteria as it (i) °

would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

j)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair
value of an available-for-sale equity
security increase in the remainder of the
annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not
income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

K)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the write down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(j)(i)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(j)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being
recognised in income statement over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.

n)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave and contributions to defined
contribution plans are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

i) Contributions to Mandatory Provident
Funds required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and mandatory central pension
schemes organised by the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) government
are recognised as an expense in income
statement as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

p) Employee benefits (Continued)

iii) The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model,
taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of
the share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to income statement for the year
under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vests (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to the retained

profits).

iii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.

Q)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is expected tax payable on taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Q)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided that those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

q)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities
if, and only if, the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

o)

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in income statement as follows:

i) Sales of computer software,
hardware, liquefied coalbed gas
and piped natural gas

Revenue is recognised when the Group
has transferred to the customer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods. Revenue excludes value
added and business taxes, and is after
deduction of any goods returns and trade
discounts.

i) Income from provision of
maintenance and other services

Revenue from maintenance and other
services is recognised at the time when
the service is performed.

iii) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment
are established.

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investments goes ex-dividend.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESBER®
POL'C'ES (Continued)

s)  Revenue recognition (Continued) s) WEBR @)

iv) Interest income iv) FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues A B WA T EF A E B A
using the effective interest method. BORFEETRFERR o

v)  Rental income from operating v) REFAEZHESWA
leases
Rental income receivable under operating wEHENREKESWAS
leases is recognised in income statement EHEHMRENEHRNE
in equal instalments over the periods BOHEERKRTER W
covered by the lease term, except where BRBEEAEERRERLESE
an alternative basis is more representative AEEEERERNZMNFE
of the pattern of benefits to be derived RERIBHISN - I THHEE
from the use of the leased asset. Lease SEEERBUUFHEENK
incentives granted are recognised in REMNEIEIMMEERE
income statement as an integral part of FRER - AAHEE SR EE
the aggregate net less payments Z 2T EEERAWA -

receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

vi)  Value-added tax refund vi) BEHEBH
Value-added tax refund is recognised BER R TR R
when the acknowledgement of refund BRRBIR T AR -

from the Tax Bureau has been received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

s)

t)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially as
deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in
income statement on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are
recognised in income statement as
revenue on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.

Deferred income

Warranty costs are received in advance for the
whole period under warranty and are recognised
in the statement of financial position initially as
deferred income. They will be deferred usually
for one year and subsequently recognised to
income statement when incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”).
The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars and the presentation currency is
RMB. The reason for using RMB as a
presentation currency is that the functional
currency of the principal entities within the Group
is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into RMB at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

u)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into RMB at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relate to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

v)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or
completed.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements,
a party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or
indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

i) the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a
joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;

iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.

w)

Related parties (Continued)

V) the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in note 2(w)(i) or is an
entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;
or

Vi) the party is a post-employment benefit
plan which is for the benefit of employees
of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

RAEE - AEEE WER) EA TS
BRGNS HEM BATRERERE
Ak (FHEAYHREER]) -

In the current year, the Group has where applicable
applied the following amendments and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA which are or

have become effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & HKAS 39

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(FRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008,
except for the amendment to
HKFRS 5 that is effective for
annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009,
in relation to the amendment
to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from
Customers
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #EZ T T NF+-_A=+—HLLFE (AAREZIE)

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continuea)

The key impact of these developments on the financial
statements is as follows:

. As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised),
details of changes in equity during the period
arising from transactions with owners in their
capacity as such have been presented separately
from all other income and expenses in a revised
consolidated statement of changes in equity. All
other items of income and expense are presented
in the consolidated income statement, if they are
recognised as part of profit or loss for the period,
or otherwise in a new primary statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Corresponding amounts have been
restated to conform to the new presentation. This
change in presentation has no effect on reported
profit or loss, total income and expense or net
assets for any period presented.

. HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) removes the option
previously available to expense all borrowing
costs when incurred. The adoption of HKAS 23
(Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group
changing its accounting policy to capitalise all
such borrowing costs as part of the cost of the
qualifying asset. The Group has applied the
revised accounting policy to borrowing costs
relating to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or
after 1 January 2009 in accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKAS 23 (Revised
2007). As the revised accounting policy has been
applied prospectively from 1 January 2009, this
change in accounting policy has not resulted in
restatement of amounts reported in respect of
prior accounting periods.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. ERFEREITI2EBME
REVISED HONG KONG XA (BB REE

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Al ) @

In the current year, borrowing costs of approximately
RMB3,308,000 (2008: RMB901,000) were
capitalised as part of the cost of a manufacturing
plant. Loss for the year ended 31 December 2009
has therefore been decreased by approximately
RMB3,308,000 (2008: RMB901,000).

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition
profits should be recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee, rather than as income. As a result, as
from 1 January 2009, all dividends receivable
from subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, whether out of pre- or post-
acquisition profits, will be recognised in the
Company'’s statement of comprehensive income
and the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee will not be reduced unless that carrying
amount is assessed to be impaired as a result of
the investee declaring the dividend. In such
cases, in addition to recognising dividend income
in statement of comprehensive income, the
Company would recognise an impairment loss.
In accordance with the transitional provisions in
the amendment, this new policy will be applied
prospectively to any dividends receivable in the
current of future periods and previous periods
have not been restated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

. HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be
based on the way that the Group’s chief operating
decision maker regards and manages the Group,
with the amounts reported for each reportable
segment being the measures reported to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of assessing segment performance and
making decisions about operating matters. This
contrasts with the presentation of segment
information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial
statements into segments based on related
products and services and on geographical areas.
The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the
presentation of segment information in a manner
that is more consistent with internal reporting
provided to the Group’s chairman and executive
director, and has no material effect on the
financial statements of the Group for the current
or comparative figures.

The application of the new HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position for the
current or prior accounting periods have been prepared
and presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment
is required.

The Group has not early applied any of the following
new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations which have been issued but are not yet
effect for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2009.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

FE R RAEERT 2 BB

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

Amendments to HKFRS 5
as part of HKFRSs 2008 !

Improvements to HKFRSs
2009 2

Related Party Disclosures ®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements !

Classification of Rights
Issues 4

Eligible Hedged Items !

First-time adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards !

Additional Exemption for
First-time adoption °

Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment
Transactions °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretation is expected to be in the
period of initial application. The application of HKFRS
3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for business
combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised)
will affect the accounting treatment for changes in a
parent’s ownership in a subsidiary.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:

3.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4,

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

a) Estimation of the fair value of
investment properties and impairment
of buildings held for own use

Investment properties and buildings held for own use
were revaluated and assessed for impairment
respectively at the end of the reporting period with
reference to observable prices in recent market
transactions in comparable properties on arm’s length
terms by independent qualified valuers. Such valuation
was based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgement, the Group
considers information readily available and market
conditions at the end of each reporting period. As at
31 December 2009, the carrying amounts of
investment properties and buildings held for own use
are approximately RMB7,330,000 (2008: RMBNil)
and RMB55,260,000 (2008: RMB4,254,000)
respectively.

b)  Estimation of impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2009, the carrying amount of goodwill was
approximately RMB23,831,000 (2008: RMBN:il).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 15.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

4.

c)

Estimation of impairment of intangible
assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether
there has been impairment of intangible assets
in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2(j)(ii). The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units are determined based on
value in use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions
made by management on the future operation of
the business, pre-tax discount rates, and other
assumption underlying the value in use
calculations. As at 31 December 2009, the
carrying amount of intangible assets is
approximately RMB69,687,000 (2008: RMBNIl).

Useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2(g). The Group
will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual values are different from
previous estimates, or will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

4.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4,
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

e)  Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2(h). The determination of the useful lives
involves management’s estimation. The Group re-
assesses the useful life of the intangible assets
and, if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the
amortisation in the year and the estimate will be
changed in the future period.

f) Estimation of impairment of trade
receivables

The policy for recognising impairment on
receivables of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectibility and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional impairment may be
required. As at 31 December 2009, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was approximately
RMB4,875,000 (2008: RMB3,029,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

4.

9)

h)

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of the estimated selling
price less the estimated cost necessary to make
the sale. The directors estimated the net
realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. As at 31 December 2009, the
carrying amount of inventories is approximately
RMB4,976,000 (2008: RMB969,000).

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong
and various tax in PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

4.

ARSI HE AT TEE
M2 EERIR @

FEZAZRFE

BEERKARTERFEIZRESE
FIBR - ] B BFERGEHEERE
PEMFEKAEE EFEFE
BIEEIBEZEE®RKE Eﬁﬁ/ﬁimﬂa
HEECAERFEE - RZETN
F+=-—A=+—8" Hazﬁ%@ﬁ
B AREEA976,0007T (ZEEN
F : AR¥969,0007T) °

P88 R IESE R 1R

AEBEEERTEBD B SRAT
BHEZEDE - EEEHARE
¥ AEHEAHE - £R B ER
BIET - BHEZRHMEAEGREN

RAEEERAREA - ARBEAMG
AREETHMBINGIEA - MR

HERHBEEEZEMT - WkSE
BZREBBEREROAEZS
BIRE - ZEZBBTERBEE
BAA 2 FTS B R IE R TR B 4 o



TEBRRESREARLF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

h)  Income taxes and deferred taxation
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised
as management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
tax in the periods in which such estimate is
changed. In this regard, the Group has
recognsied deferred tax assets and liabilities in
the amount of approximately RMB1,427,000
(2008: RMB1,169,000) and RMB17,510,000
(2008: RMBNil) as at 31 December 2009
respectively.

5. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the development
and sales of computer software, resale of computer
hardware, provision of system integration and
maintenance services, manufacture and sales of
liquefied coalbed gas; and sales of piped natural gas
and gas supply connection services.

4.

ARSI HE AT TEE
M2 EERIR @

h) PSR RIELERIR (&)

EHRETEREZERE THREESRE
CELEHMBEE  TREEERAE
H 1% 7 85 A ) A3 8 2R Bt o 1) 4 88
TRERELABEBEBIBATAT
ARERR o Mz I8TEH A B R R Ah
i REERBRERRE@ANE
HETHE R EEREEE R
ME-RYEME - AREERZ=Z
TNFE+ A=+ BHERELTH
BEERBESAINODARK
1,427,000 (ZZZEN\F : ARK
1,169,0007T) & AR ¥17,510,000
T (ZEENF : AREBZT) -

AEEZEBXBREREKFRE LE
- ERBEHEE  BEHEAGEXREE
%G - RIEKBREENMBEE  UREB
AAR R B RERIRT
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

5.

TURNOVER (Continued) 5.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
and services provided to customers, which excludes
value-added and business taxes, and is after deduction
of any goods returns and trade discounts. The amount
of each significant category of revenue recognised in
turnover during the year is as follows:

R (»)

EXRBEATFRERHERARB 2HE
B ENEERENREED - WKk
EAREREERFTNEINEE - FAREE
MR SHEBEAW S BARISRN T ¢

2009 2008

—EENEF —ZEENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Sales of computer software B SHE 29,208 10,527

Resale of computer hardware BEGEE 11,161 14,906

Maintenance and other services fees  #1& R H b RIEU & 11,609 13,165

Sales of liquefied coalbed gas BILEEREE 34,611 —
Sales of piped natural gas and gas EEBERAREER

supply connection services R B AR 7% 5,445 —

92,034 38,598
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbl) 8E—ZE T hFE+ - A=+—HILFE AARKHIE)

6.

OTHER REVENUE AND NET 6. HitzmRFRA
INCOME
2009 2008
—EZhE ZTEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Value-added tax refund EETIRN 6,584 3,195
Net realised and unrealised gains/ BHFHIEBER
(losses) on trading securities FEBU S (B5B) F5E 1,650 (2,536)
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERFBEWA 435 513
Government grants received B2 U B £ R 346 353
Write back of impairment loss FE YRR OB B B 1R [
on trade receivables 1,249 839
Gain from changes in fair value of KEMERNFEESH W
investment properties 151 —
Rental income from investment REYHERS WA
properties 185 —
Net exchange gain HNEE T as T R — 161
Others H 46 152
10,646 2,677
Note: PREE -

Interest income from bank deposits represented the total interest
income on financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss.

RITFERZHBMASRL IR A FEF A BRZ S
BMEEZNSWALLER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

7. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

(a)

(b)

(c)

7. HIBRFFEBAIZER
H1B: P15 BE A2 B IR S HIRR DA T 4598

2009 2008
—EZhE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Staff costs (including directors’ (a) EIRZA (BIEKFE9
emoluments in note 9) ZEEME)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHMETR 26,032 27,148
Retirement benefit scheme R ORAE FIFT B AR
contributions 2,703 1,950
Total staff costs 48 8 T RN 28,735 29,098
Other items (b) HfyEAR
Cost of inventories sold and BT EREHRRS
services rendered (note 25(b)) Z B 7N (M 5E25(b)) 57,601 34,142
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR B & 486 542
Depreciation of property, Wz MREREBITE
plant and equipment 10,211 2,140
Amortisation of prepaid lease LSRN TIEN LH
payments for land under o HE
operating leases 456 344
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 783 4,093
Impairment loss on property, Y - R RERERE
plant and equipment E5 18 — 321
Impairment loss on intangible assets | & EREEE — 3,017
Net losses on disposal of property, HEME - HE R
plant and equipment e R R 63 47
Impairment loss on trade receivables J& W AR ORI (B E5 1B 3,131 3,790
Operating lease charges in respect THREFZ
of land and buildings SERNER 1,326 1,138
Finance costs (c) ®EHE
Interest expenses on bank advances ARAFREEEER
and other borrowings wholly ZIRITRFR R EA
repayable within five years EEZFERX 3,832 960
Imputed interest expenses on EAERZEE
promissory notes (note 33) FE R (FFaE33) 2,368 —
Other borrowing costs H A& B A 1,404 1,844
Total interest expense on I 3EIE A FEFTA
financial liabilities not at fair Baze®ams
value through profit or loss ZH BB 7,604 2,804
Less: Amount capitalised into W BARMEBTE
construction in progress BIREZ$H
(note 17(a)(iii)) (FF=E17(a)(iii)) (3,308) (901)
4,296 1,903
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8. INCOME TAX IN THE 8. HMEBHZRZFEH
CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
a)  Income tax in the consolidated income statement a) FEBmRIZAEDIE:
represents:
2009 2008
—ZEhEF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Current tax - PRC Enterprise  BIHi%{ 18 — REI R EFREHR
Income Tax (“EIT") (TeZEmBRI)
Provision for the year NEEZRE
(note 34(a)) (Ff5E34(a)) 4,535 1,680
Underprovision for the BEFERETR
prior years (note 34(a)) (Mf5E34(a)) 236 666
4,771 2,346
Deferred taxation EEBIE
Origination and reversal of TREHES
temporary differences K # (Bl
(note 34(b)) (T 5£34(b)) (509) (2,022)
Income tax charge FIS Rz i 4,262 324

Note:

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Company Law of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of the Cayman Islands income
tax.

B &E -

ARARBEREHEAREZERSHSH
MR AERRERAR - HULEREH
MRS EMEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) HE —Z %

8.

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 and reduced corporate
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%, which is effective
from the year of assessment 2008/09. Therefore, Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the two years ended 31 December
2009 and 2008. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made as the Group has no estimated assessable
profits for the two years ended 31 December 2009 and
2008.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
towards.

However, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, Fujian Shine
Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Shine”) and
Shanghai Shine Science & Technology Co., Limited
(“Shanghai Shine”), as “encouraged hi-tech enterprises”
will continue to be entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15%.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group, Shanxi Yangcheng
Shuntai Energy Development Company Limited (“Shanxi
Yangcheng”) and Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy
Development Company Limited (“Shanxi Qinshui”), are
entitled to the exemptions from the EIT for two years
starting from 2008, followed by a 50% tax relief for the
next three years. Shanxi Yangcheng and Shanxi Qinshui
have no estimated assessable profit for the year ended
31 December 2009 (2008: RMBN:il).

8.

NFEFZA=+—HBILFE RARKFIE)

MEBERRZFIBH @

a) HmABE@ERZIMAENE: (&

BeE : ()

E/\—Y?)\ﬁz/\ﬂ +/\E| ?/%_L/fﬁ\
ZNFRAKROER) - BA

15 %R%RIEE1751_/J%1165J_ ==

TR EERAER - IM'
HE— fﬁhi& TENFFTZA=T
SRR R TR
HRARERBE_Z
ENFRZZZNFT+ZA=T—HILF
WO 5 /5 7 T

miE=

2N/ =

—HIEFEZEBFIE
Tl 216 5%E+’1—

JE 3 BB FTEERTURR] -
SBIEH E R

RBPEARAMBENCEAEHAE
R (EEREIE]) REEMRBIREENR
&o - PEINBARE —ETNF—H—

BB ERR25%

A - ALEZ HEKHE QB REN SR
BRARAR (BN E]) k EEMEHR
BFAERAR ([ LEHME]D (ERIEMBRE
¥ BEBZBISRNBEEEMFHR

= o

REE 2 BB A R I EG AR R
EHRARAR ([WEABRK]) K ILFEL/KIR
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TNFRERCBAEEMERME -

BR=FAELEAEVRLEE - ME%
FNAFE+_H=
+— B FELEE RGN (ZFF

R LFDLKREE—F
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8.

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

b) Reconciliation between income tax charge and

8.

MEBERRZFIBH @

b) RERMERFEZHEVHIHES

accounting loss at applicable tax rates is as FHEEZ EHERIT
follows:
2009 2008
—ZEhEF —ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Loss before income tax MBRFIE A EE (54,568) (33,261)
Notional tax on loss before ERMEERERBRGTE
income tax, calculated at the ZMNBRFTE BRI B E
rates applicable to the HEBIA
countries concerned (10,009) (5,654)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR A X
expenses ZRIERE 13,517 4,026
Tax effect of non-taxable income 78 aR#H W am 2 T IH £ (3,142) (753)
Tax effect of tax losses not DGIEE 7Y oF =]
allowed for tax deduction LRI 1,510 1,954
Tax effect of unused tax losses ﬂiﬁﬁwrﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁmlﬁ
not recognised EBENTBTE 2,136 801
Overprovision of deferred BEFERERIBRX
tax expenses in prior years BEE R — (575)
Underprovision of current tax @1 F E BN EfF: 18
in prior years BETE 236 666
Tax effect of change in tax rates X EH) 2 KT & 14 (141)
Income tax charge Fr {5t s2 i 4,262 324
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0.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIBEEBRAIEHEICLEHREEEME
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as (N
follows:
2009 2008
—EZhE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Fees we 132 135
Salaries and other emoluments #ﬁ@&/\’rm i T 1,470 1,782
Bonus TEAL — —
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & K48 K 51 2 £ 7% — =
1,602 1917
Details of directors’ emoluments by individuals for the HE_ZTNhF+A=+—HLFE -

year ended 31 December 2009 are as follows:

BERALZEEZMEFENOT :

Retirement
Salaries
and other scheme
emoluments contributions
Fees HeH Bonus RAKEF Total
we H 357 B AL FHEIft R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETT AR%BTR
Executive directors HITES
Wang Zhong Sheng TAE — 874 — 874
Shi Liang it — 350 — 350
Non-executive directors FHITES
Kwok Shun Tim PaEE — 175 — 175
Ye Jinxing oM — 71 — 71
Independent non- BYEBITES
executive directors
Yan Chang Ming B & BH 44 — — 44
Luo Wei Kun BHE 44 — — 44
Pang Yuk Fong 215 44 — — 44
132 1,470 — 1,602
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEME @
(Continued)
Details of directors’ emoluments by individual for the HE_ZZN\F+ZA=+—HLFE -
year ended 31 December 2008 are as follows: ERALTzEEMESFIBLT
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
emoluments contributions
Fees HaH Bonus RRAEF Total
e A 57 B fE4L FFEIER BEr

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARETT

Executive directors HITES
Wang Zhong Sheng TR — 890 — — 890
Shi Liang i — 712 — — 712

Non-executive directors FHTES

Chang Jian (note) =) — — — — —
Kwok Shun Tim PapE — 178 — — 178
Ye Jinxing Eom — 2 — — 2
Independent non- BYEBITES
executive directors
Yan Chang Ming & & BA 45 — — — 45
Luo Wei Kun BHE 45 — — — 45
Pang Yuk Fong Z2EF 45 — — — 45
135 1,782 — — 1,917
Note: Resigned on 15 October 2009 MizE: ERZZTNEFE+ATHABT -
During the two years ended 31 December 2009 and REBEZZETNFR_ZZNF+HA=
2008, no directors waived any emoluments. No +—HIEMEFE - B &S = R E T
inducement payments to join or upon joining the Group & REBEZTENFR_ZEZTN\F+=
or as compensation for loss of office was paid or payable A=+—HIMEAFE  WEREFNES
to any director for the two years ended 31 December S A ERMARNER S IAKEE

2009 and 2008. 2 RE SKBERAE(E o
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10.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10. ZEEH AT
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one hEBERHFATH  —B(CEENF K
(2008: two) is director whose emoluments are disclosed B)BESE  HEZHESRHEOWE - H
in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect B (ZEZNF - =) ERA T2 B
of the other four (2008: three) individuals are as follows: SEEHMAT ¢
2009 2008
—EZhE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFIT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEREMER 3,247 2,717
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREFIFEI R
contributions — =
3,247 2,717

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the emoluments

BE_TENF+_A=+T—HLFE"

of the four (2008: three) individuals with the highest mE (ZZEENFE - Z2) RaFEIAL
emoluments are within the following bands: ZHEN U TEE
2009 2008
—EEhEF ZTEENF
Number of Number of
Individuals individuals
A AE
RMBNil to RMB890,000 ARBZTTE AR
(equivalent to approximately 890,0007T (FEE R &Y
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000) = 70 21,000,000 7T) 3 2
RMB8&890,001 to RMB1,335,000 AR #890,001 TE AR
(equivalent to approximately 1,335,0007T (B &A%
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000) 1,000,001t E
1,500,000/ 7t) 1 1
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11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11.
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of approximately
RMB66,742,000 (2008: RMB10,558,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

12. DIVIDENDS 12.

No dividend has been proposed or declared by the
directors for the two years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008.

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13.

a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB58,741,000 (2008:
RMB33,585,000) and the weighted average
number of 934,392,000 (2008 (restated):
710,064,000) ordinary shares in issue during the

RARFERAEBEEE

AAREEARIGHZRAEE  BEERA
ARV BRERERZEBERENAEARE
66,742,000 (ZEENE : ARK
10,558,0007T) °

Hﬁ I%\

BE_ZZNFRER_ZEENF+_A=+
—BIRESFE  EETERZRMAHE
TRALE. ©

BREE
a) BREXREE

BREREERAAREE AE
BB H ARKES8,741,0007T (=&
ZN\F : AR¥33,585,0007T) & F
NEBTEBRMZETHH
934,392,000/ (—ET)\F (KE
5l) : 710,064,0008%) 5T & - Hit &

year, calculated as follows: W
2009 2008
—ZEhEF —ZTENF
'000 ’000
T’ F A&
(Restated)
(& E5)
Issued ordinary shares R—H—Bz
at 1 January BT TR 620,600 567,600
Effect of issue of shares by BEBRDEEEETT
share placement Igin 2 & 5,101 41,560
Effect of issue of shares by BRAMAEERT
open offer IR in 2 & 186,134 100,904
Effect of issue of consideration BIRERD Z
shares A 122,557 —
Weighted average number of Rt+-—A=+—HZ
ordinary shares at 31 December 57 A% N S 15 85 934,392 710,064
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13.

14.

LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

a) Basic loss per share (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2008 has been
retrospectively adjusted to reflect the effect of
open offer as mentioned in note 35(b).

b)  Diluted loss per share

There were no dilutive potential shares during
2009 and 2008, and diluted loss per share is
the same as basic loss per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
On adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating segments and in a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s chairman and
executive director for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following five reportable segments:

Computer software :  this segment develops and
sells computer software
relating to securities and
financial industries to
financial and securities
sectors in the PRC.

Computer hardware . this segment sells computer
hardware in complement to
computer software segment.

13.

14.

BRER @
a) BREXEE @

RAEBRE_ZTTEN\F+_A=+
—BUEFEZEREAEBEREMS <
BB N E F B Y H
B PARBREEE35(b) Pt A B E &
LR

by EBREEERE

—EENFR-_TT\FLEEE
BEEAERD  MEREEEER
BREAREEER -

7 &8 2 ¥,

AEBERREEBER (Em kR 85
ZOREBRERE - REMB AV HRE
HERIZESSR RIS 7 B N BRI AR B X%
EATESREARDEERNEFERER
ZAREFEHNZTA B AREE2
BTN AERREDE -

BT % 90 BB AE A B R
FIHEESF R TR
EXBEMZEREMN
THE 28N E
755l o

BRI %0 b & B
AT BRI AR A
ZEEE -
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Maintenance and
other services

Liquefied coalbed gas :

Piped natural gas

this segment provides
repairs and maintenance
services and other technical
support for customers of
the computer software
segment.

this segment is responsible
to manufacture and sales of
liguefied coalbed gas to
piped natural gas providers
in the PRC.

this segment is responsible
to reprocess of liquefied
coalbed gas, construction of
gas pipelines and supply of
piped natural gas to
commercial, industrial and
household customers in
Beiliu City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the
PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment
information disclosed in the financial statements
has been prepared in a manner consistent with
the information used by the Group’s chairman
and executive director for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments. In this regard, the
Group’s chairman and executive director
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

DE2 I @)

M1 I ELAD AR

ER o S
Dbz BEERRME
I8 K% e o AR DA I
H Al 4% o

RICKEE R, O RDMAREER

HEBRELKBRT
TRZEERAR
HER -

BERAR ¢ RAOBARAR(K

BB R E 1T BN
T EpmeEs
KAt EEERAR
THBEEAMLRE
BEILRTZ A
EEREP °

DHEE  BERER

REBBUHIRELAFST - R
BHERBE 2 D MEMTIRBALE
BEFERATESHAGEDBRA
EoRDEME2ERMEMERN—
B2 hAmE - st s - AKH
ETREBTEFRRTIIELER
BEAREDMEIE2FE BE
REE
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of other
corporate assets which are unallocated to an
individual reportable segment. Segment liabilities
include trade and other payables, deferred income
attributable to the manufacturing and sales activities
of the individual segments and bank and other
borrowings managed directly by the segments with
the exception of other corporate liabilities which
are unallocated to an individual reportable segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment
profit/(loss) is “adjusted profit/(loss) before
interest and taxes” (“Adjusted EBIT"). To arrive
at adjusted profit/(loss) before interest and taxes,
the Group’s profits/(losses) are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to an
individual reportable segment, such as interest
income and other unallocated corporate
expenses.

In addition to the receiving of segment
information concerning adjusted EBIT,
management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment sales), interest income and expenses
from cash balances and borrowings managed
directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations. Inter-segment
sales are priced with reference to prices charged
to external parties for similar orders.

14.

i)
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continuea)

a)

14. D2 W &)

Segment results, assets and liabilities a) HEE -BERERE#HE)
(Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable FAN - RIEHRTAEREERNT
segments as provided to the Group’s chairman EEAEIEERIT ED KRR
and executive director for the purpose of resource ZAREEBERE D EERET W
allocation and assessment of segment s -
performance for the year is as follows:
Maintenance and
Computer software Computer hardware other services Liquefied coalbed gas Piped natural gas Total
Blgs BHES BERRMEE RLRER EERRR it
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
CEEAE| CT5)\5 | CEEAE| CEE\E | ZB3AE | CSTN\E | ZEEAE| CERNE | C8EAR | CIE)E | cE3EAE | CEE)E
RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTE | ARMTR | ARETT | ARMTR | ARETR | ARMTR | ARETR | ARRTR | ARETR | ARMTR | ARETE
Revene from external RENREE 2
customers 29,208 10527 | 11,161 14906 | 11,609 13165 | 34611 - 5,445 — | 92,034 38,598
Inter-segment revenue AEkE - = - = - —| 612 = - — 2612 =
Reportable segment revenue: ERE DB 29208} 10527 | 11,1610 14906 | 11609 | 13165 | 37,223 - 5,445 — | 94646 38598
Reportable segment proftloss) ~ AREA TR/ (B
(adjusted EBIT) (iEz8%e8Im) 16380 (20,127)) (2,875) (3,025) 4,697 6140 | (13.278)) (10,288) | (54,928) — | (50,004)§ (2729%)
Interest income HELIN 50 55 32 78 38 69 309 299 4 - 433 501
Finance costs BERA - - - - - — | (404 (1844 ) (2856) — | @20 (184
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% + BERREHE
equipment (1,212) (1,133) (451) (255) (280) (306) | (6,446) (50) | (1,429) - (9,818) (1,744)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments SFABATER 11
for land under operating leases fishs (86) (100) 0l (4 (45) (39) (220) (201) (98) - (456) (344)
Amortisation of intangle assets ~ EFAEEH - 4 - - - - - = (783) - (783)|  (409)
Impairment loss on goodwil EEREEE - - - - - - - — | (5297) — 1 (52,97) -
Impairment loss on property, VERE:+ 3
plant and equipment RERESE - (202) - (1) - (108) - - - - - (321)
Impairment loss on intangible assets  EFEEREEE -1 B0 - - - - - - - - -1 60
Net losses on disposal o propert, HENE BAR
plant and equipment REERIE (23) (25) (15) (16) 6) () - - - - (44) (47)
Impairment loss on trade receivables  EMESHESE B30 3521 - (245) - (24) - - - —| 6By G671
Write back of impairment oss MRS
on trade receivables FRER 1,159 817 90 2 - = - = - = 1,249 839
Income tax it (2,530 (88) 1 (1,088){ (125) (915) (111) - - 251 — | (4,262) (324)
Reportable segment assets RREDDEE 45,325 16,558 | 15,088 10,207 | 13,005 14910 | 278,067 | 168812 | 162,095 — | 513,580 | 210487
Reportable segment liabilties RRENDERE 47,964 31,265 1314 3,083 8,965 5811 | 129927 74850 | 35,632 — | 223802 | 114969
Additons to non-current segment assels: 2B FREH FEE
— Goodwill —hE - = - = - - - — | 76,802 — | 76,802 -
— Property, plant and equipment  — 1% » BRREE 1,682 468 1,229 37 30 91 | 782411 113016 | 46,595 — | 128070} 113912
— Prepald lease payments for land ~ — FARATER
under operating leases j:ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 1,839 - 1,344 - 354 - 11,006 9,000 — | 12537 11,005
— Intangible ssefs —EAE - - - - - - - — | 70470 — | 70470 -
3,521 468 2,573 37 677 91 | 782411 124021 | 202,867 — | 878719} 124917
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B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenues, profit or loss, assets and

14. D2 W &)

b)

AREDE WD BN
B-EEREBEZYHE

liabilities
2009 2008
—ZEENF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
Revenue Wi
Reportable segment revenue BIRE D W= 94,646 38,598
Elimination of inter-segment revenue  Hfi #5528 B U &5 (2,612) —
Consolidated turnover RAEERE 92,034 38,598
Profit/(loss) wmAL (E5E)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) BmEN R, (BE) (50,004) (27,294)
Elimination of inter-segment profits £ 2> 5B &4 Fl — —
Reportable segment profit/(loss) REAEEIINARFZ
derived from Group’s external BEDEEF
customers (B1#8) (50,004) (27,294)
Interest income B U A 435 513
Net realised and unrealised gains/ Z S B5 2B RARE
(losses) on trading securities Rz (B8) F58E 1,650 (2,536)
Finance costs B & R A (4,296) (1,903)
Unallocated depreciation ROBITE (393) (396)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMEEFZ (1,960) (1,645)
Consolidated loss before income tax & FT5 AT 4R & 18 (54,568) (33,261)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenues, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities (Continued)

14. D2 W &)

AREDH WS

B-EEREBEZHER @

i N B

2009 2008
—EZhE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BREDHEE 513,580 210,487
Elimination of inter-segment H 55 > BB ) FE U kI8
receivables (8,100) —
505,480 210,487
Investment properties "EMFE 7,330 —
Trading securities B 585 582 16,071
Amounts due from securities JEUR B 548 42 1T IR
broker firms 19,040 555
Deferred tax assets R IRE E 1,427 1,169
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEHEEE 11,166 11,357
Consolidated total assets IRAEREE 545,025 239,139
Liabilities =K
Reportable segment liabilities BREHHEE 223,802 114,969
Elimination of inter-segment payables £ %> %5 & & f<F 738 (8,100) —
215,702 114,969
Tax payables JERTHLIE 4,121 1,206
Promissory notes A H IR 51,296 —
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOREEEEE 4,057 2,834
Consolidated total liabilities mEBaE 275,176 119,009

/
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B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

c)

14. D2 W &)

Geographical information c) HEEFR
The Group’s revenue from external customers is REERBINARR 2 W= 2 E R
derived solely from its operations in the PRC. Its BHEHRPE &&E o HigthE S5
non-current assets (excluding financial assets ZIERBEE (CRLEERELERIE
and deferred tax assets) by geographical location BERIN FlaT
are detailed below:
2009 2008
—ZEhEF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Hong Kong BB 22 54
PRC F 379,577 148,701
379,599 148,755
Information about major customers d EBEFEEFEFZEH

For the two years ended 31 December 2009 and
2008, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10 per cent of
the Group’s total revenue.

HE_TTNFRZFTN\F+=
A=Z+—BILMEFE  REASE
EHARP 2 Wb A S BBl
TR10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbl) 8E—ZE T hFE+ - A=+—HILFE AARKHIE)

15. GOODWILL 15. B8
The Group REE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2008, RZZTENF—HA—H1 -
31 December 2008 —EENF+ZA=+—H
and 1 January 2009 rE=—ZEFNF—H—H —
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) I & B B~ /) (P 7E38) 76,802
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENF+ZA=+—H 76,802
Accumulated impairment 2B E
At 1 January 2008, RZZEENF—-—A—81 -
31 December 2008 —EENF+ZA=+—H
and 1 January 2009 r=ZTZTNF—HA—AH —
Impairment loss A EE 52,971
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZEZENF+=_A=+—H 52,971
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENF+ZA=+—H 23,831

At 31 December 2008

RZEBEENF+_A=+—H
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Impairment test for cash-generating units
(“CGU”) containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGU identified
according to reportable segment as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

15. GOODWILL (continued)

BE @

BEBECREELEN (REE
FEN]) ZRERF

BEDRE TAKEIL T HIARE D ABE
ZHEELBN

2009 2008

—EBIEF —ZEENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREFT

Piped natural gas BEERAR 23,831 —

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
represented the excess of the cost of acquisition of Allied
Rich Management Limited and its subsidiaries (“Allied
Rich Group”) over the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Allied Rich
Group as mentioned in note 38.

As part of the consideration of the acquisition, the
Company allotted and issued 245,786,516 ordinary
shares (see note 35(b)). In accordance with HKFRS 3
“Business combinations” issued by HKICPA, the fair
value of consideration shares was determined by
reference to the market value of the ordinary shares of
the Company at the date of acquisition of Allied Rich
Group. With the unexpected increase in the share price
of the Company from HK$0.32 at the date of agreement
to HK$0.60 at the date of acquisition, the goodwill arising
from the acquisition was much greater than was
expected by the management of the Group when the
agreement was entered into. The fair value of the
consideration shares increased by approximately
RMB60,581,000 and after taking into consideration of
the effect of discounting the principal amount of the
promissory notes to their fair value of approximately
RMB10,321,000 based on the effective interest method,
the net increase in fair value of the consideration of the
acquisition was reduced to approximately
RMB50,260,000. The Group therefore immediately after
combination (i.e., as at 3 July 2009) recognised the
excess of the carrying amount of the CGU (including
goodwill) over the recoverable amount of the CGU, which
were arrived at based on value in use calculations as
detailed below, as impairment loss on goodwill.

22N E3sHR - RUEIHEARZIHZ
BRI E SR AR A A RENEA
A (WEEE]) 2 RABRAEBREE
LB B AE LA B DT EF RS
25 o

RN BIAC 3 K B517245,786,5160% E @A 1
BUWEBREZ —BH (RKIFE35(D)  HR
ERSITMASHEM 2B BB REER
FIREBE] RERMZATFETZR
BUEHREEEEAARATERZME
METE - ARARRRERHZ B BEK
BEHEZEHR0.32ETEAE0.60/ T -
EWESI B EBERRAEBEEERR]
YRS AS c RERMDZATFE
49 A R #60,581,0007T & £ & 2R 1%
ERMRELABEAREZBEZASBEINERH
N EHARKE10,321,0007T 2 214 -
WEREZATFEEINFERIZEDOAR
#50,260,0007T ° Bt * NEERZES
eI —ZEENFLAZR)BRASE
BN (BEERE) FEAESNREELS
i,z PJ YR Bl 3R EE (IR AR T Xt 2 (B
MER) 2 BAEREERBEEIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

15.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
(“CGU”) containing goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of piped natural
gas segment is determined based on value in use
calculations with reference to the valuation carried out
by an independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal
Limited (“Asset Appraisal”), who have among their staff
associate members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 45-year period, which is based on the average
business and operation life over the CGU of piped
natural gas segment. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated rates stated
below. The growth rates do not exceed the respective
long-term average growth rates for the business in which
the CGU of piped natural gas segment operates.

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations:

5. B8 »

BERECRTELEN (REeE
£E]) 2 BERR (@)

EBARROBEReELEM 27 KM
REIORBEEREEHETE 2R —XK
BABETEENERREGRAR ([E
EfE] ZAEMTZREREEENE
BhEe 2 MEBKE) T2 AEMETE -
ZEAETEERRSRETRN (BERE
BEMILAEREASFHE 2 MBEE) - B
REBEBRARDMZREELEMZF
BERGREEFHMGEE - BARLFHME
ZBREREFER NG ERESR - BE
XY ASREBRARD A2 RSELE
R ErBER 2 RMFIgIERE -

EREETETERZEERR :

2009 2008

—EENE —EE)N\F

Gross margin EH = 18% -%
Growth rate R R 0-19% -%
Discount rate YriR =& 13% %

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectation for
market development. This discount rate used is pre-tax
rates and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segment.

EEERBAERRLEENERR 2R
HETHREEMNE - FIERZZTEXRR
FRBLAT A R & RIR AR D B A B 2 1 E
Rk -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

15.

16.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
(“CGU”) containing goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of piped natural
gas segment is less than its carrying amount based on
value in use calculations. Accordingly, impairment loss
on goodwill of the piped natural gas segment of
approximately RMB52,971,000 (2008: RMBNil) is
recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

15.

BE 2

BERECRTELEN (REeE
£E]) 2 BERR (@)

BIEFEREBEFER L BBRARS
ZIREBEA BN 7 FTRERBERERE
B Bt BE_FTTNAF+_A=1+—
HIEFEZHGEBaREEREBRAR
DE 2 BB EEELNARKE5S2,971,000
—EENF  AREZT) ©

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REY
The Group rEE
RMB’000
ARBTT
At 1 January 2008, RZEENF—H—H
31 December 2008 —EENF+ZA=1+—8H
and 1 January 2009 M=ZFEZENF—H—H —
Additions HE 7,179
Changes in fair value N EEZH 151
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENF+=—A=+—H 7,330

The investment properties are situated on land held
under medium-term leases in the PRC.

All investment properties of the Group were revaluated
as at 31 December 2009 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to observable prices in recent
market transactions in comparable properties on arm’s
length terms. The valuations were carried out by Asset
Appraisal, who has recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued.

BEMFEURTERETFHRORHE <L
ke

RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H  A&£EF
EREVMEVERLFAMEELEETE
it > RFAMEEEN2RFEBRYERLTH
MGET IR IR B Z A BRERTE -
ERGEREENEETT BT
HRNE R GE 2 EME RIS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REY = =)
(Continued)
The Group (Continued) REE (8
The Group leases out investment properties under AEBRBLEEHEHHBREYZE - HLY
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial — TR —E=MF - A EESEEMR
period of 1 to 2 years, with an option renew the lease # o BRI B GRS BETER - AN
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. FEEE—EMFEN—R - URMETE
Lease payments are usually increased every 1 to 2 years e  ZEHOBMTIWHEXAES -

to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under REBERBEAAIBEHLEHAOE T ZARK

non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as BN REBEEREETENT ¢
follows:

2009 2008

—ZEENF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AREF T

Within 1 year —FR 105 —

After 1 year but within 5 years —FREREFA 41 =

After 5 years AFEMNUE — —

146 —
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

L .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bl 3% SR R KI =T

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

17. W% - WBERRE

EQUIPMENT
The Group a) A&
Buildings Furniture
held for ~ Leasehold Plantand ~ Computer and Motor ~ Construction
own use  improvements Pipelines  machinery  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
KERAzET HEELIE B HERRE EERE GERRE fE  HEBIE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETr  ARETr  ARETr  ARETn
Cost R
At 1 January 2008 RZETN\E-F-A 5,306, 2231 — — 2,982 2,108 3,076 11,130 26,838
Additions (note (ii) RE (W) = - - - 664 488 — 112,768 113920
Disposals hE = - - (727) (100 - - (827)
Exchange adjustments EiRE - () - - () (6) - - (16)
At 31 December 2008 and RZERNE
1 January 2009 t-A=1+-BR
“TENE-A-H 5,305 2,232 — - 2914 2490 3,076 123,898 139915
Additions (note (ii) RE (&) 920 48 173 2,504 704 173 1,131 76,012 82,105
Acquistion of subsidiaries KENELR
(note 38) (hi#38) 3,359 40971 753 — 898 419 — 46,400
Transfer from construction BERIRER
in progress 48212 - 151,329 - - - (199,541) -
Disposls te - ~ B B - EM
Exchange adjustments EiSE - 1 - - - 1 - = 2
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
t-A=t-H 57,719 2,121 41,144 154,586 3,174 3,547 4506 369 267,843
Accumulated depreciation S RERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2008 RZEZNE-F-A 484 208 - - 1,680 519 520 — 3471
Chargs for the year FEERH 26 47 - - 565 33 504 = 2140
Writen back on disposals HERH - - - = (682) (%) = = (777)
Impairment loss (note (V) RS (K3 (v) 31 - - - - - - 1
Exchange adjustments EiRE - 2 - - 0 (6) - - (12
At 31 December 2008 and RZERNE
1 January 2009 t-A=1+-BR
“TENE-A-H 1,051 678 — — 1,559 831 1,024 — 5,143
Charge for the year AEERH 1,485 539 1,199 5200 657 527 604 = 10211
Written back on disposals HERE - - - - (387) (13) (38) = (438)
Exchange adjustments EffE - (4) - - 2 1 = - ()
At 31 December 2009 RZZSNE
t-A=1-H 2,536 1,213 1,19 5,200 1,827 1,346 1,590 - 14911
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
t-A=t-H 55,260 1,508 39945 149,386 1,347 2,201 2,916 369 252,932
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE
t-A=t-H 4,254 1,554 — - 1,3% 1,659 2,062 123,898 134772
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. Y% - BERRE @
EQUIPMENT (continued)

a) The Group (Continued) a) XA&EE®#)
(i)  The buildings held for own use are (i) HEERZEFMNEPEIE
situated on land held under medium-term FREAEANIFE R 2 i E o

leases in the PRC.

(i)  At31 December 2009, the carrying amounts (il RZEENF+ZA=+—
of buildings held for own use and pipelines B AAEBERITHE mﬁﬁ?ﬁ
pledged for the Group’s bank borrowings were BB IEEREFREEY
approximately RMB2,409,000 (2008: FEEMAOABARK
RMBNil) and RMB38,850,000 (2008: 2,409,0007T (=2 Z )\ F :
RMBNIil) respectively. ARBZ L) REAREK

38,850,0007T (ZZFZ )\ F :
AREZT) -

(i) Additions of construction in progress for (il HE-_ZEZEAF+ZA=+
the year ended 31 December 2009 —BUEFEZERIREZAR
includes interest expense capitalised EBRARAFAZEEER
on other borrowings wholly repayable ZHMEEZEEREFE
within five years of approximately X4 AR #3,308,0007T
RMB3,308,000 (2008: RMB901,000). (ZE2EZNF : AR ¥

901,0007T) °

(iv)  As at 31 December 2008, the directors (iv) AN—EENFF+_A=1+—
assessed the recoverable amount of H ZEx22Z7THEETE
buildings held for own use by reference E’\_ ZZNF=ATNLB#E
to a valuation performed on 19 March T2 E - BEBEEHAREY
2009 by Asset Appraisal on the basis of %fi"ﬁ?%qﬂﬁi’&$%‘;&?ﬁﬁ
their open market value by reference to X%ZT&E%PW& oz
observable prices in recent market AEATMEG THIEERE
transactions in comparable properties on FaREHREE EEFNE
arm’s length terms. Asset Appraisal has AR A E 2 R IR
recent experience in the location and BETEKR - BIBTME -
category of the properties being valued. EERTEAELREBEA
Based on the assessment, the directors R#321,0007t R Bt A=
concluded that an impairment loss of * o

RMB321,000 was required and was
charged to the income statement.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continuea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

17. Y% - HBRFHE @

The Company b) ANAQF
Furniture
Leasehold Computer and Motor
improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HEL£EIR ElEE GERRE AE @i
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost EE
At 1 January 2008 RZETN\F
—H—H 81 96 105 1,662 1,944
Additions NE — 8 = = 8
Disposals HE — (37) — — (37)
Exchange adjustments B 5 % (5) (2) (6) = (13)
At 31 December 2008 RZZETN\F
and 1 January 2009 + ﬂ Jr =
_ﬂ E| 76 65 99 1,662 1,902
Additions NE — 55 13 — 68
Disposals & — (37) — — 37)
Exchange adjustments B 5 % 1 — 1 — 2
At 31 December 2009 RZZETNF
+=A=+-R 77 8 113 1,662 1,938
Accumulated depreciation BT E
At 1 January 2008 RZZETN\F
—H—H 7 47 98 194 346
Charge for the year AEET 39 12 2 332 385
Written back on disposals HE# D — (37) — — (37)
Exchange adjustments B SR ) () (6) — (10)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF
and 1 January 2009 + ﬂ Jr =
_ﬂ E| 44 20 94 526 684
Charge for the year AEET 37 16 4 331 388
Written back on disposals HE#E — (17) — — (17)
Exchange adjustments B SR (4) — 1 — 3)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENEF
+-A=+—H 77 19 99 857 1,052
Carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2009 RZZETNF
+=-—A=+—H — 64 14 805 883
At 31 December 2008 RZZETN\F
+=-A=+—H 32 45 5 1,136 1,218
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) & &

LAND UNDER OPERATING

LEASES

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid lease

payments for land under operating leases is analysed T

as follows:

TEEAFT AT —HLEFE CAARKIE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR 18. &%&

HYOTHENLHES

AEEREHEH T AN A S 2 RE{ED T

The Group
rEH

2009 2008
—EEhEF ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 14,346 3,685
Additions NE 3,537 11,005
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) Ut BB B A &) (M 5E38) 9,000 —
26,883 14,690
Amortisation for the year NFEHH (456) (344)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+t A=+—HZEEE 26,427 14,346
Less: Current portion B BNERER (9 (608) (363)
Non-current portion FEBNEA FB 1 25,819 13,983




128

LAND UNDER OPERATING
LEASES (continued)

The prepaid lease payments in respect of land under
operating leases are held under medium-term leases
and situated in the PRC. At 31 December 2009, the
cost of the prepaid lease payments for land under
operating leases is approximately RMB27,587,000
(2008: RMB15,050,000).

At 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of prepaid
lease payments for land under operating leases pledged
for the Group’s bank borrowings was approximately
RMB10,295,000 (2008: RMBNil).

At 31 December 2008, the Group had been in the
process of applying to the relevant government authority
for the land use right certificate in respect of a piece of
land located in the PRC with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB10,804,000, and the land use right
certificate was approved during the year ended 31
December 2009.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in cost
of sales and administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

™
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL-STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR

. RREHATEASLIHES
(%)

KERLYT 2FaN LA S hizh HEY
BE HEURHEHE R-_ZTTNF+_A
=t+—H KEAHT BN LHHHESK
N A AR#27 587, 0007 (ZEE)\E -
AR #15,050,0007T) °

RZEZNF+ZA=+—H0 ' EHEE
B RITERMER 2 LEROTEN -
e 2 BREEL A AKK10,295,0007T
(Z2ZENF : ARBEZT) o

RZFBTZNF+_A=1+—8 XKEH
R 7 Bz — 18 = 3tb 60 5 B IR 4 B R 5
T ERER R HMZEREENR/AR
%10,804,0007C - Mt EAEEED R
BE_TENFT_A=T—"HLFER
ERIR -

RNEFHETHWNGRIBRR ZHER KN
MATHFAZ A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
The Group RE
Exclusive Computer
right for software
piped natural development
gas operation costs
EBRAREK BREEHN Total
ZBXER RN At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Cost RE
At 1 January 2008, R-ZEZENF—F—H"
31 December 2008 and “EENFF+_A=+—HEK
1 January 2009 —Z2TNF—F—H — 29,069 29,069
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B T 8 2 A
(note 38) (PfF3E38) 70,470 — 70,470
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZEAF+-_A=+—8 70,470 29,069 99,539

Accumulated amortisation and st 84 R RE

impairment
At 1 January 2008 RZEENF—HF—H — 21,959 21,959
Amortisation for the year REEGHEH — 4,093 4,093
Impairment loss REEBRE — 3,017 3,017
At 31 December 2008 and RZZENF+ZA=T—HK

1 January 2009 —EENF—-H—H — 29,069 29,069
Amortisation for the year NEFHEH 783 — 783
At 31 December 2009 R-EENFE+-_A=+—-H 783 29,069 29,852

Carrying amount REE

At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNFE+=A=+—H 69,687 — 69,687

At 31 December 2008 RZEENF+-_A=+—H — — —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

a)

Computer software development costs

The recoverable amount of computer software
development costs included in computer
software CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering one year
period, which is the remaining life of the
computer software development costs held by
the Group. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculation relate to the estimation of cash
inflow/outflow which include budgeted revenue
and gross margin. Such estimation is based on
the past performance and management’s
expectations of the return on computer software
development costs. The directors of the Company
considered that it is unlikely that the computer
software development costs have any future value
in use and therefore the carrying amount of these
computer software development cost of
approximately RMB3,017,000 were fully
impaired for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Amortisation of computer software development
costs is recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of not
exceeding five years.

Exclusive right for piped natural gas
operation

It represented the exclusive right to operate in
gas pipeline infrastructure and provision of piped
natural gas in Beiliu City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC for a remaining
period of 45 years and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful live
of 45 years.

19. B EE @

a)

E Jl B B B R AN

B AFRERN (BRERERER
ReEEBEMA) 2 /] WEFETIR
IREREEFETNEEE - % &
TERRBEEREABR —FHHE
N (BNARERH 2 BRI FREK
RZEBTNER) HE MBIAE 2R
ERERA - ERABEAETEZ
Hih T EMRBREBERAMEZ
LEAHE BEREERENLER
o FRMBFAIREBERRNLE
EEUEMERAERADR A
HmiEL - ARREERLS - B
MIFFABK AT AR LA (Ef A
‘BEMEE  RLZFERKITHE
AR ARK) AR E3,017,0007T 2 R E
BERBE_ZTZTN\F+ A=+
—RILEFERAZHELRE -

EREFRABRAEFEN T EER
FZ A AERFHANAERERE
RABFX

EERARFEL 2 BRER

ZHENFERASE 2 R HE A - &
hEEFEAR BRI T E R
REBEBREMIZHEERAR
ZEBREN - WiIREREERGE
AJ{£ P AF HRAS S K -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

20.

21.

22,

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION
OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group paid a total sum of
approximately RMB7,000,000 (2008: RMB7,000,000)
as deposits for the acquisition of certain property, plant
and equipment, which comprise of two sets of plant
and machinery for two production plants for the
manufacture of liquefied coalbed gas in Shanxi Province
of the PRC.

It is expected that the Group will invest approximately
RMB320,000,000 to pursue the liquefied coalbed gas
business and a set of plant and machinery commenced
production during the year ended 31 December 2009.
The directors of the Company expect that the remaining
production plant will start commercial production in
2012.

Capital commitments of the Group contracted for in
respect of the remaining unpaid balances of
approximately RMB49,420,000 (2008:
RMB85,400,000) for the above acquisition are included
and disclosed in note 41(a) to the financial statements.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION
OF INTERESTS IN LAND UNDER
OPERATING LEASES

During the year, the Group paid a total sum of
approximately RMB8,475,000 (2008: RMB1,311,000)
as deposits for the acquisition of interests in land located
in Yangcheng Shanxi Province of the PRC which will be
held for own use under operating leases.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20.

21.

WREME - MBERREZE
&

NEE - NEBE AT ARET 000,000
T (T NFE : ARET,000,0007T) AtE
BWEETME  HMERZREZTS B
ER B ILTEE MERCEERAEE TR
B R 4B R B e i B3 o

TE B & B G2 E £ A R #320,000,00054
HERBACR B RER - M —ARRE M as
ER_ZEZENF+-_A=T—HILFER
BRALE - ARREERY - M2 EE
ZHBERR _E—_FRAEEEE

iU R S 2 KR40 A R 49,420,000
T (ZZEZTNEF : ARKS5,400,0007T) © A
SEERZREC N2 EAERED ALK
BN EHRERMT41@) ©

WEBEEHEO N LR~
Al &

AFEE AEEBEAEIHHARE
8,475,000 (ZZEZENF : AR
1,311,0007T) AYE BRI A B IL RS
Pl e TR 23] & - 2RSSR
BECEROBEER -

22. RMBARIZRE

The Company

PN
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EBETN\FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRG - RRE 112,873 110,233
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

22,

(Continued)

At as 31 December 2009, the details of the subsidiaries

are as follows:

22. RfIBRARIZRE @

RZZBEZNF+_A=+—HB HEBRQF

ZEHBWT

Proportion of equity interest

R Al
Particulars of issued
and paid-up share Group's
Place of Iregistered effective
incorporation/ capital interest Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment BRIRAMRE/ bi% -1 Direct Indirect  place of operation
HWEAR AR TRMRL/ HUEE ERERHE BERER HE B TEEK/EELY
Shine Science & Technology British Virgin Islands 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% — Investment holding/
(BVI) Company Limited (“BVI") of US$0.01 each Hong Kong
RBRTES 100,000 5 RERR/ B
([ERERES]) HE0IETZ EBR
Inboom Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% — Not yet commenced business/
ABRAKS US$1.00 each Hong Kong
1RER ORRRER/ B
HELOETZEBR
Fujian Shine Science & Technology PRC Registered capital of 100% — 100% Development and sales of
Co., Ltd. (note (a)) o RMB12,500,000 computer software, resale of
BEFNERHARAR K (2) HRER computer hardware,
AR%12,500,0007 provision of system integration
and maintenance/PRC
RERBEERAMN BEER
BUhRREZGENR
EBRT/=
Shanghai Shine Science & PRC Registered capital of 100% — 100% Development and sales of
Technology Co., Limited (note (b)) # RMB5,000,000 computer software, resale of
LEHERRNEERAR (HF (b) HRER computer hardware, provision
AR#5,000,0007 of system integration and
maintenance/PRC
REREEERAN BEEN
B RREZGEAR
EBIRT/=
Fuzhou Xinwangluo Network PRC Registered capital of 100% — 100% Resale of computer hardware
Company Limited (note (c)) o RMB1,000,000 and network installation/PRC
RN EFREERAR (M5 (0) HMER BEERELR
AK1,000,0007 EMTRRZE/hE
Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai Energy PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% — Not yet commenced business/PRC
Development Company Limited HE HK$40,000,000 TEBRER/TE
(note (a)) HHER
LA ERERERERAR 40,000,000 7

(BEE (a))
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. A"HIB AR ZEE @)

(Continued)
Proportion of equity interest
R B
Particulars of issued
and paid-up share Group's
Place of Iregistered effective
incorporation/ capital interest Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment BRIRAMRE/ by | Direct Indirect place of operation
WEARER FMAY/HLLYE  EREREE ERER B k3 TEER/EENLY
Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% — Manufacture and sales of
Development Company Limited # HK$80,000,000 liquefied coalbed gas/PRC
(note (a)) HMER BICBEEREEREE /R
WA KIERERERERAR 80,000,000/ 7T
(Fit3E (a)
Sino Treasure Global Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% — Investment holding/Hong Kong
ABRUEE US$1.00 each RERR /B
1R &R
HELOETZEBR
Allied Rich Management Limited BVI 3,000 ordinary shares of 100% — 100% Investment holding/Hong Kong
EBRUES US$1.00 each RERR/ B
3,005 5 %
AELOOETZEBR
Shanxi Allied Rich Services PRC Registered capital of 100% — 100% Investment holding/Hong Kong
Limited (note (a)) i RMB5,000,000 RERR/ B
AR ERRREERAR HHER
(FirE () AR 5,000,007
Guangxi Beiliu Gas Company Limited PRC Registered capital of 97.5% — 97.5% Sales of piped natural gas and
(note (d)) # RMB20,000,000 gas supply connection services/PRC
BRELGARRARAH FMER EBARRHEER
(B £ () AR #20,000,0007 RS RS,/ .
Note: B 5
(a) Registered under the laws of the PRC as a wholly-owned (a) RiFPZE AREMBUEEEM BINEGBE
foreign enterprise. 1=
(b) Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability (b) BEPEARLMBZEZIMAGRER
enterprise. The Group nominated Ms. Gu Yun (“Ms. Gu”), ¥  AEERBAARAEFEEERZL
the ex-chairman of the Company to hold a 10% equity ([BZ L)) REtRRERAEEFEF10%
interest in trust for and on behalf of the Group. N
(c) Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability (c) RIFRZEAREMBEZZEMAEBREL
enterprise. The Group nominated Ms. Gu to hold a 33% 1%  AEBREZAQFAMERBELZLIR
equity interest in trust for and on behalf of the Group. ERRRRAEBIFEI3R/ AR -
(d) Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability (d) RiIFPEAREMBEZZEMAEBRET

enterprise.

i
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 23. IfEHERE
INVESTMENT
The Group
rEEH

2009 2008

—EEhEF ZEENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AREFT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost ELETRAZS  RRE 4,800 4,800

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
acquired an 8% equity interest, in LUFAEEMRBR A
&l ("BEWIR") for a consideration of RMB4,800,000.
The available-for-sale investment represents investment
in unlisted equity securities issued by a private entity
incorporated in PRC. The investment is measured at cost
less impairment at the end of each reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
wide that the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that their fair values cannot be measured realiably.

HE_ZT/\F+-_A=+—HBILFE -
AEBEERELEESYRERAR (8
SHRl)8rliE  KESARE
4,800,0007T ° A EREHRENT
AR AL 2 ALV B RS 2 IF BT AN R 55
ZIRRE R S EHRE RBRAR AR ER
E RERAEAFEZEFAHBEN S
R A ARBEZTRRELEFRHFZILF
ETNBERA SEHAHE ©

24. TRADING SECURITIES 24. EFEFH
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—2ENE —EE)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETFT
Listed securities, at fair value tHEE RATES
— Listed equity securities — BB 2 ETRAFES
in Hong Kong — 1,179
— Listed equity securities — Rz ETRAES
in the PRC 582 364
582 1,543
Unlisted securities FEmES
— Managed investment funds —HECEBREES
in the PRC (note) (P E) — 14,528
582 16,071

Note:

The managed investment funds are managed by

professional investment managers and mainly
comprise securities issued by central banks, banks
and other financial institutions and corporate entities.
Fair values of unlisted managed investment funds are
provided by fund managers. The valuation is generally
based upon the market return and performance of the

underlying securities.

it : ERREES I HERRELEER -
TZESHPRRT  RITMEMBEE
BEMDEEBETZES - FLHE
BREAZSZAFEDAESKLER
Ho HAE-RBBEEHEESRZTSE
RMRIRETT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbl) 8E—ZE T hFE+ - A=+—HILFE AARKHIE)

25. INVENTORIES

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

25 78

(a)

RIEEEMBRRER 2 FERE

The Group
rEH

2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Raw materials R A4 — _
Finished goods 2K M 4,976 969
4,976 969

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories

EREABAXZEESRZ TN

recognised as an expense is as follows: T
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EBhEF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Carrying amount of inventories B &FEZKREE

sold 57,322 34,142
Write down of inventories WO F & 279 —
57,601 34,142




136

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

26. FEUR AR H 1 fE WK TR

26. TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
TEEAEF | ZZEN\F | ZBBAE | ZZTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR | ARB T | ARE TR | ARB T
Amounts due from JE L B /B8 A R)
subsidiaries (note (a)) I8 (K 3E(a)) — — | 160,763 22,686
Amounts due from securities JEW B H 42 1T
broker firms (note (b)) I (B FE(D)) 19,040 55 — —
Trade receivables (note (d)) JE W2 B 3R (B3 (d)) 4,875 3,029 — —
Other receivables H e 5178 4,156 1,440 279 186
Loans and receivables B E W A 28,071 4,524 161,042 22,872
Amount due from a related e — R EdE A A
company (note 43(c)(i)) B (P EE43(0)(0) 3,610 — 3,074 —
Advance to suppliers [ {4 B 7 B 5K 4,185 — — —
Prepayment for acquisition of B - R K
property, plant and equipment JiE 2 R ROE — 5,827 — —
Other prepayments and H A T8 5178
deposits RiEs 3,410 8,279 489 2362
39,276 18,630 164,605 25,234
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbl) 8E—ZE T hFE+ - A=+—HILFE AARKHIE)

26. TRADE AND OTHER 26. EWIRF R H At FEWFRIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (%)
Note: B &E
(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) PE UL B B A B FRIE
(i) An analysis of the amounts due from subsidiaries (i) ERHEABREZATAT :
is as follows:

The Company

RAF

2009 2008
—EERE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Amounts due from subsidiaries &1 ff B A 7] 5 IAE 213,734 22,686
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (52,971) —
160,763 22,686
The amounts due from subsidiaries are FEUHIE R R RIEAEIEIR - B BEWAEE

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZREE -

demand.

(ii) The movement of impairment loss on amounts (ii) FEULHT B A R B R ERE 2 BB T -

due from subsidiaries is as follows:

The Company

b N

2009 2008

—EZhEF ZZT)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBFTT

At 1 January Rn—HA—H — —
Impairment loss recognised  F RNiER 2B EE1E

during the year 52,971 —

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 52,971 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) HE —Z %

26. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(Continued)

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, an
impairment loss of approximately
RMB52,971,000 (2008: RMBNIl) was recognised
in respect of the amount due from Sino Treasure
Global Group Limited (“Sino Treasure”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which
acquired the Allied Rich Group during the year
as detailed in note 38, as a result of the
impairment loss on goodwill arising from
acquisition of Allied Rich Group as mentioned in
note 15.

During the year, the Group traded securities through
securities broker firms. As at 31 December 2009, a total
amount of approximately RMB19,040,000 (2008:
RMB55,000) was due from securities broker firms. The
amounts are unsecured and bear interest at prevailing
market interest rates and can be withdrawn by the Group

at any time.

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from
prepayments and deposits, are expected to be recovered

within one year.

NFEFZA=+—HBILFE RARKFIE)

FEE U B R %

Hitb B WK1

(&)
sk« (&)
(a) FE Ukt B A RIRKE (48)

(b)

(c)

(ii) (&)

%‘zx—z“ﬁﬁﬂ——ﬂ:ﬂ——ﬁt
FE - E 15U =

NEE G E&EEMEH&Z
Sino Treasure Global Group Limited
(ISino Treasure])) (A2 72 & M
BAR) 2 RIERERBEEENA
R#¥52,971,0007C (ZZZNF
AREZTIT) o B 3857 =
i ZIME R RN ER Y TS
=3 -

REE - Zliﬁlﬁﬂ FRETEER
F -R-ZEAF+_A=+—8 " EK
uR%%&%EﬁZﬁAIE%%ﬁE%@E/\EM
19,040,000 (ZZEZENF : ARK
55,0007T) ° % EHASEEMR - HHITH
SRR SR mALERERER

BRIEFN IR RIZ SN - TBHI A YRR
N E A FORAS T — S AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbl) 8E—ZE T hFE+ - A=+—HILFE AARKHIE)

=+ +
26. TRADE AND OTHER 26. EWIRF R H At FEWFRIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (%)
Note: (Continued) MizE - (&)
(d) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as follows: (d) FEUWEBR K Z BRER D AT U0 :
The Group
REH
2009 2008
—EERE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARETT
Within 1 month 1EA R 2,917 1,788
More than 1 month but less 1@ A&EIEAR
than 3 months 1,364 653
More than 3 months but less 3EAZE6[EAR
than 6 months 594 588
More than 6 months but less 68 A& E12(8 AR
than 12 months 1,224 719
More than 12 months 128 A A £ 8,292 6,915
14,391 10,663
Less: Impairment loss (note (e)) B OBREEE (M) (9,516) (7,634)
4,875 3,029
The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 to 180 days AEE -4 TEF30EIS0REEHR -
to its customers. The Group may, on a case by case basis AEBE ARG ERRELE - RIETEHES
and after evaluation of the business relationship and credit BEREEE BEFEREREES-

worthiness, extend the credit period upon the customers’
requests.
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26. TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note: (Continued)
(e) The movement of impairment loss on trade receivables
is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

26. BRI H 1t B W R

(&)

(%)

FEWERFORERBR BT :

The Group
AEH

2009 2008

—EERE —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR T

At 1 January wn—A—H 7,634 4,683
Write back of impairment loss FRER 2

during the year BEEE (1,249) (839)

Impairment loss recognised FRER
during the year BB 18 3,131 3,790
At 31 December RN+—HA=+—8 9,516 7,634

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly

(see note 2(j)(i)).

Write back of impairment loss on trade receivables
represents the recovery of debts due from these trade
receivables previously considered to be impaired. An
allowance for non-recoverable amount that had been

made in previous year was written back accordingly.

As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of the Group
amounting to approximately RMB9,516,000 (2008:
RMB7,634,000) were individually determined to be
impaired and full provision had been made. These
individually impaired receivables had been outstanding
for over 180 days as at the end of the reporting period or
were due from companies with financial difficulties.
Accordingly, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
approximately RMB3,131,000 (2008: RMB3,790,000)
were recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

FEWBRTR < MIER BT IR A BB RO
HEZNER (B A U B 1O R BE MEAR B ER S -
BEEMRS BB S 1R B B R M BR SR S
(RPFEE23)G)) ©

JE W BR TR (E S 158 B M5 K B e AT R B E
EREZ RBERRPTREIR - RUARTFE
e 2 DA R E SRR B B E AR T -

RZZEZNF+_A=+—08 ~&EEZ
U BR TR A9 A R #59,516,0007T (ZZE N\
F : AR¥7,634,0007T) B 1B 5 E AR
B - WIFH28EE - REHR  ZF
1B BB E R W AR R R BB180R » /B
HBFBREEZ AR 2R - Bt - RER
ZRERIBELHARK3,131,000T (ZEF
NE + AR#ES,790,0007T) B HER © A
SEYERSEZSTEHREMAERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

26. TRADE AND OTHER 26. EWERA N H b fE W Fh18
RECEIVABLES (continued) (&)

Note: (Continued) Mex : (&
(e) (Continued) (e) (&)

AEEREEZFRUERZE S EHR
BERME R EAZMEIE TSR

The factors which the Group considered in determining
whether these trade receivables were individually impaired
include the following:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor; —

receivables that have been outstanding for a
certain period;

the Group granting to the debtor, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the debtor’s financial
difficulty, a concession that the Group would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the debtor since their initial
recognition, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified including:

— adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors of the Group; and

— economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the trade receivables of the
Group.

BB AMBRERPBNEE

FEMHRIAEHR —E B

FEMRREH A2 RS EH
@B AR BT EBA—
BB LR T R E A
S

BEAB A LR WESETE M
BHEE

AEEZ BHMBREKFIER BIR
ERARR - Rt ARRR2RE
HRAFEZRD - BE AR
AE R EE - B1E

— REBEB N 2 MFHAR

HEDFED : R

— B R A B EUR KA
A Z AR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbl) 8E—ZE T hFE+ - A=+—HILFE AARKHIE)

26. EWERA R H b EYWFRIE

26. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuea)

Note: (Continued)
() Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are

(&)

4

(f)

m

(%)

AN

R R AR (B R R A RIRUE A 4R 2 Bk
BT

as follows:
The Group
rEH

2009 2008
S L IE: —ETN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBEFTT
Neither past due nor impaired REE R AR RE 4,875 3,029
Less than 1 month past due BE DR 1E A — —
1 to 3 months past due BEI1E3E A — =
Over 3 months past due 51 HA B B 31E A — —
4,875 3,029

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

REBRABRENBBERSRRZ T
P %EBEP RO EERDE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

27. TAX RECOVERABLE 27. AR EIFIE
The Group
rEEH
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Value-added tax refund receivable JEUIE (B R 1,990 692
28. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS 28. SRITEHER
Fixed bank deposits of approximately RMB7,164,000 IRTTEHERL AARET,164,0007T © %
with maturity over three months from 31 December EEFRZEENF+A=+—HEF
2008 carry interest at prevailing market interest rates. —ERABEIE  WRRITMSFIRFTE
The management of the Group considers that the AEEEREERAEZE T AL REEEE
carrying amount of deposits approximates their fair NEEBERE °
value.

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 29. RERREEEY

The Group The Company
rEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008

“EBRNF | ZZTT)N\F | ZEBAF | ZTTN\HF
RMB’000 RMB'000 | RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR | ARBTI | ARSTE | ARBTT

Deposits with banks RITHER 30,000 12,000 — —
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEEB S 66,292 20,215 29,443 785
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 96,292 32,215 29,443 785
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the RekReSEVPEASBREE RS
Group and short-term bank deposits with a maturity of N =18 A s AR B HA W 23R 1T 45 FI =R
three months or less at prevailing market interest rates. FFEZREBRITER - AEBZBEER
The management of the Group considers that the B RERBSEEYM REEHAERT
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents (EREEZS

approximate their fair value.
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FEMAERREMENRIE
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE | ZZTT)N\F | ZEEAE | ZZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR | AREB T | ARETR | ARB T
Trade payables FETBR 3K 9,515 858 — —
Amounts due to directors B ZEERIE
(note 43(c)(ii)) (B =E43(c)(i) 1,548 22,037 731 20,851
Amount due to a minority EN—RLEPMRE
shareholder (note 43(c)(iii)) =R3A (B sE43(c)iii) 1,569 — —
Accrued salaries st ¥ & 1,388 4,219 — —
Payables for acquisition of W - HWER
property, plant and equipment FAEE N FIE 47,910 10,943 — —
Accrued expenses and FEETRIS &
other payables H A & < 308 2,037 5,070 954 742
Financial liabilities measured at IR EkSERX AT E 2
amortised cost EHAE 63,967 43,127 1,685 21,593
Deposits received from customers  [A15E 51| & & [A]
g;z. Wz &e
— Computer software P X 4 47,134 30,450 — —
— Liquefied coalbed gas — Aﬁiﬂ:k%féﬁ 13,794 — — —
— Piped natural gas — BERAR 3,175 = — —
Other tax payables Hiv eI HitE 347 513 — —
128,417 74,090 1,685 21,593
Note: PRFEE -
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: FERERRZRR AT ¢
The Group
ARE
2009 2008
—EENE —EE)NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFTT
More than 1 month but less than 3 months 1B R #%&E3EAR 9,515 858
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

31. DEFERRED INCOME 31. IELEWA

The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EZThE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
At 1 January n—H—H 3,713 1,750
Credited to the income statement SFABEK (3,713) (1,750)
Income deferred during the year F IR EW A 8,832 3,713
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 8,832 3,713
32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 32. fR{TR HEMER
As at 31 December 2009, the bank and other loans are R-ZZEZENF+-_A=+—8 " EEEN
repayable as follows: WITREMERAT :
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EZThE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
Secured bank loans repayable: HEEREMRITER
Within 1 year or on demand 1FANBIRERKEE 2,000 —
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&E2F A — —
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F & A5F A 13,000 —
After 5 years 5ELA E — —
15,000 —
Unsecured other loans repayable: AEEEREEMER
Within 1 year or on demand IFANBREREE 50,000 40,000
65,000 40,000
Less: Amount due within 1 year shown J& : mEBEBE T —FR
under current liabilities EIH 2 318 (52,000) (40,000)
Amount due after 1 year shown FREBEBET—F
under non-current liabilities 1% 28 2 3IB 13,000 —
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aINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

AL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

33.

Note:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Bank borrowings bear interest at floating interest rates
ranging from 4.50% to 9.82% (2008: 6.63% to 7.13%)
per annum.

Other borrowings due to an independent non-bank finance
company in the PRC not connected with the Group, bears
interest at the fixed interest rates ranging from 5.69% to
7.12% (2008: 7.12%) per annum.

Except for unsecured other borrowings of
RMB50,000,000 (2008: RMB40,000,000), the remaining
bank borrowings were secured by the Group’s property,
plant and equipment with total carrying amount of
approximately RMB41,259,000 (2008: RMBNil) and
prepaid lease payments for land under operating leases
of approximately RMB10,295,000 (2008: RMBNil). As
at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group did not have
any undrawn banking facilities.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
bank and other borrowings approximate their fair values.

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 2 July 2009, the Company issued unsecured
redeemable zero coupon interest promissory notes in
connection with the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Allied Rich Group as mentioned in note 38. The
promissory notes are not transferable and are repayable
in one lump sum on the second anniversary of the date
of issue of these promissory notes. The Company has
the right to redeem the promissory notes at its principal
amount prior to the maturity date by servicing prior
written notice to the note-holders.

32.

33.

BITREMER @

=
=

(@)  SRITHEFERN FEF450%%29.82% (—F
T\F : 6.63%%7.13%) Z/FEHI =5
5 o

(b)  FEASARER— B AR N RS 2 B 9F
RIOTHBRARAZEMEREN FEF
5.69%%7.12% (ZZZEN\F : 7.12%) 2 [&
FEFEETE o

(c) B SRR 2 Ho A 5 AR #650,000,0007C
(ZZZN\F : AR¥40,000,0007T) 5h
HBRRITERNAEBRRAENSAR
41,259,000 (—ZZ2Z/)\F : ARBZ
TO) 2% MBS RREUARKEHOTE
R & XA R#10,295,0007T (Z2E
NE  ARBZT) (EER - RETEAEF
RZZZNF+ZA=+—H  AEEL
BAERAKRRERZRITEER -

(d)  EFRA ROREMERZKFEEEZE
REERE

A5 RE

RZZZNFXAZH - KAFIFMIFE38
Pt W B TG = R B 100 % AR AN A 2 T 321 TR
ERZABRZERSARER - AARE
PAERERBARNBTRSALERRE
BEEA-BER AATRARELS
AIMZEREARKEERRN  REARE
RA R E A BBO A LR
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33.

PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

The fair value of the promissory notes with a total
principal amount of approximately HK$67,416,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB59,345,000) was
HK$55,691,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB49,024,000), as at date of issue, based on the
professional valuation performed on 14 March 2010 by
Asset Appraisal. The effective interest rate of the
promissory notes was determined to be 10.05%.

33. ZARLEE »

BEEETJENR _ZE—SF=F1+HmWBEE
TZHEEME - 7¥<}éﬁ]")§$$%@*ﬂ%’ﬂ
67,416,000 T (HERHAREKE
59,345,0007T) RETHEB A FER
55,691,000 L (HERH AR
49,024,0007T) ° AN EE 7 BE AR E
TE £10.05% ©

RMB’000

ARETF T

Carrying amount at 1 January 2009 RZEZENF—A—BZEAE —
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) U EERT B 2 &) (F7E38) 49,024
Imputed interest expenses HERMERAXZ 2,368
Exchange adjustments PE S E (96)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2009 R—_ZEZNF+-_A=+—HZKEHE 51,296
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a sale RMEHRE  ARRHEBERFE AL

and purchase agreement dated 9 February 2010 was
entered into between the Company and note-holders to
dispose of the Group’s 100% equity interest in Shine
Science & Technology (BVI) Company Limited, which
beneficially holds 100% equity interest in Fujian Shine,
Shanghai Shine and Fuzhou Xinwangluo Network
Company Limited (altogether referred to as “Shine
Science BVI Group”), for a consideration of
RMB60,000,000. The consideration will be satisfied by
a discharge of the Company from its payment obligation
under the promissory notes. Details are set out in note
44(a).

BHR_Z—ZF_ANAZEEHZ
N EXRXEBEMShine Science &
Technology (BVI) Company Limited 2 100%
RAEZ  ZARERNBERENE
BHERBMNIE %@%ﬁ@ﬂ?hﬁ
[Shine Science BVIEE]) - KEA/RARK
60,000,0007T ° BRAMRE 2 BT X AR
BRARRRBEALEBNRZEE - B
FFIEE M sE44(a) o



148 :
.I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 2R B =
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34. INCOME TAX IN THE 4. ZREVBRRERRAZFAER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current income tax recognised in the (@ HZEMBRAKRAERZBVEFRE
consolidated statement of financial position and MEREFAEBHAT :
the movements during the year are as follows:

The Group
rEEH
2009 2008
—EZ2hE —ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
PRC EIT R EERTIS
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,206 1,644
Provision for the year NEEZRE

(note 8(a)) (FI5E8(a)) 4,535 1,680

Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBENR
(note 8(a)) (Mg 7E8(a)) 236 666
EIT paid for the year REEEHBNTLEMRSH (1,856) (2,784)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 4,121 1,206
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34. INCOME TAX IN THE 34. MEMBMRRKAZMBHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities b) CRIAELEMEEEREE
recognised
The major components of the deferred tax assets/ RBEHRRBEEERILFEEE
(liabilities) provided for at the end of the reporting HEEZRLEHRBEE,(BFE) 2
period and for the year then ended are as follows: FEXHBT -
Fair value
adjustment on

Fair value  prepaid lease
adjustment  payments for

on property land under Fair value Computer Impairment

plant and operating adjustment software loss on

equipment leases  on intangible  development trade
nE BER  SEREAT assets costs  receivables Total

REZATE BAi#Etr EYEEZ ERBH YRR
#E  AVEREE  AYEHEE BEAA HEBE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2008 RZZE\$-A—-H — — — (853) — (853)
Credited to income statement FTABRE (H7E8(2)

(note 8(a)) — — — 853 1,169 2,022
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEN\E+=A=1-H

1 January 2009 RZEENF-RA-H — — — — 1,169 1,169
Acquisition of subsidiaries e B A 7

(note 38) (B #£38) (141) (2) (17,618) = — (17,761)
Credited to income statement FTABRE

(note 8(a)) (BiE8(a)) 55 — 196 — 258 509
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE

TZRA=+-A (86) ) (17,422) = 1,427 (16,083)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

34. INCOME TAX IN THE 34.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (continuea)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

mEMBIRRRAZ R
()

(b) CHRIAELEHBEEREE
(#)

THARMBREN S HETHEA

(©

balances for financial reporting purposes: AT -
2009 2008
—EZThEF ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
Deferred tax assets recognised in 4z & BA # ik &= A
the consolidated statement of R IR A E E
financial position 1,427 1,169
Deferred tax liabilities recognised #x & B4 #5 ik & A
in the consolidated statement BRELEHIBAE
of financial position (17,510) —
(16,083) 1,169

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(q), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately RMB13,428,000 (2008:
RMB7,123,000) as at 31 December 2009 as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the tax losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

) HERERZELEHEEE

EFﬁ#W%ﬂmzA%ﬁ% 7N
SEVEERR_TZNFT=A
=S+t -HHEZHABEEBEBEHARKE
13,428,0007T (ZZEZEN\F : ARK
7,123,00070) B2 BERIEE
E - DHREEERERELER
PRI A HIERIBEEE 2 KK
JE AR A5t g A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

35. EXKfHE

35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

ARBHFE DS EHEKED E’:‘ﬁ
R F R G RN AR A m
BERA - AR TTI)?'JTZE”EH,%HEJZﬁB

a)  The reconciliation between the opening and a)
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity. DINFEY R FELR 2 BB FFIFH T U0
Details of the changes in the Company’s s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Share Translation  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R RE BERE RitBE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR
At 1 January 2008 R-_EENFE—HA—H 100,835 (1,849) (24,779) 74,207
Comprehensive income 2HKR
Loss for the year AEEEE — — (10,558) (10,558)
Other comprehensive income  H 2 H Uk
Exchange differences on BEMBREE
translation of financial EREBERER
statement to presentation
currency — (1,214) = (1,214)
Total comprehensive income 2 E K FAE — (1,214) (10,558) (11,772)
Transactions with owners BEFBAZRS
Issue of new shares BOEkh
— Share placement — RipEEE 47,223 — — 47,223
Transaction costs attributable 317 # {7 FE1h
to issue of new shares RHMA (180) — — (180)
Total transactions with owners EEFAZR 5 AEH 47,043 — — 47,043
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENE
+-A=1+—8H 147,878 (3,063) (35,337) 109,478
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 35. EXK@#E @

(Continued)
a) (Continued) a) (#)
Share Translation  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R =E BRERE RitBE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETT ARETr ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2009 RZZZENEFE—F—H 147 878 (3,063) (35,337) 109,478
Comprehensive income 2HKE
Loss for the year AEEER — — (66,742) (66,742)
Other comprehensive income  H 2 H K&
Exchange differences on BREMBRERE
translation of financial EREMERZR
statement to presentation
currency — (324) = (324)
Total comprehensive income 2K &A% — (324) (66,742) (67,066)
Transactions with owners HEBAZRS
Issue of new shares BITFRO
— Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ — UEEH B A A) 127,653 — — 127,653
— Open offer — NAEE 62,066 — — 62,066
— Share placement — R EEE 13,972 — — 13,972
Transaction costs attributable  Z1T# A% {7
to issue of new shares BIER SR (4,201) — — (4,201)
Total transactions with owners EEFAZR 5 AEH 199,490 — — 199,490
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
+-A=1+—8H 347,368 (3,387) (102,079) 241,902
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 35. EXK#E»
(Continued)

b)  Authorised and issued share capital b) ZEERBEBEITRA

The Group and the Company

FEBRAEALNT
2009 2008
—EENE ZEENF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
R4 EE 8B | BRHOEE x|
'000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’'000
TR AR®TxR T ARBTT
Authorised - Ordinary EE-BREE
shares of HK$0.01 each: ~ 0.01/& T
2
At 1 January and R—A—B R
31 December +=-A=+—H 5,000,000 53,000 | 5,000,000 53,000
Issued and fully paid —  BETREAE -
Ordinary shares of HE{E0.015 T
HK$0.01 each: 2 EE
At 1 January n—A—H 620,600 6,399 567,600 5,922
Issue of shares by FERRMNOEE
share placement BTG 124,120 1,091 53,000 477
Issue of shares by FEBRAREE
open offer TR D 371,308 3,267 — —
Issue of shares for U HEFT B A 7]
acquisition of BT D
subsidiaries 245,787 2,164 — —
At 31 December R+=-A=+—H 1,361,815 12,921 620,600 6,399
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) 8 T NF+ - A=+ —BILFE UAAREFIE)

35. EXKw#E @

35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(Continued)

b)

Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

On 19 March 2008, the Company allotted and
issued 53,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each by way of a placement of its shares at
HK$1.00 per share for cash.

On 3 July 2009, the Company allotted and issued
245,786,516 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at the issued price of HK$0.60 per share to partly
settle the consideration for acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Allied Rich Group.

On 22 September 2009, the Company allotted
and issued 371,308,507 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by way of an open offer at
HK$0.20 per share (“Open Offer”). Under the
terms of the Open Offer, the consideration of
174,943,445 offer shares of approximately
HK$34,989,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB30,782,000) was satisfied by a discharge
of the Company from its payment obligation in
respect of the amount due to Mr. Wang Zhong
Sheng of approximately RMB30,782,000 (see
note 43(c)(ii)). The consideration for the
remaining offer shares under the Open Offer was
paid in cash.

On 17 December 2009, the Company allotted
and issued 124,120,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by way of a placement at
HK$0.138 per share for cash.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and entitled to one vote per share at meetings of
the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EEREBITRA (&)

RZZZNF=A+NHE  TRF
B AT 1.007% T BC & E Ak LA
BmEBRBEezHA o REREST
53,000,000/ X E{E0.01/8 7T Z
BB

RZZFZAFELA=H " KRR
HTEEMR0.608 TR #E KET
245,786,516 B IR EEO.01 T2
Ak - AMEMUEREEE100%
PR w2 BB -

RZEBEZENFNA=Z+=B ' &Q
FEBIA B0 20 TEITT AR
E(2ARE) 2R @ EERE
#1371,308,507 % FAXEI{E0.0178 7T
2L - RIBAFEE ZIER
174,943,445 R B EWRMH 2 RELD
34,989,000/ 7T (HHE RO AR
30,782,0007T) & i A7k FE A 5
54 2 FRIB#H AR ¥30,782,0007T
ZHBREEMENS (R K
43(c)(ii) - AFAEE TEREEMR
MZREEABEI M -

RZZENF+ZA++EE AR
A BAER0.138B TEITRE 2
AR - BB K% EE17124,120,00008 &
BREEO.01B T 2 T i@ Ak AR ER IR
{:E o

EERKEARRESTREIRZ
BRERRARARIEZLZETR—
RIEEE - FTBEARYARE
ZHBEBEDFAEEES -
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 35. EXK@#E @
(Continued)
c) Nature and purpose of reserves c) fMRBEZMERAEN
() Share premium (i) BOEE

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of BIERSHE R AE (BET
the Cayman lIslands, share premium is ) B mER DR TR
distributable to shareholders, subject to B MEM)R D Ik R B &
the condition that the Company cannot REEEEHINBEHE - k(i)
declare or pay a dividend, or make a BEANEREERMIORE
distribution out of share premium if (i) it BEREBETRAERZRZ
is, or would after the payment be, unable % BARENEEIRSKIE
to pay its liabilities as they become due, RERRE SR IRD & EF
or (i) the realisable value of its assets EHERDIE ©

would thereby be less than the aggregate
of its liabilities and its issued share capital

account.

At 31 December 2009, the aggregate RZEZNF+ZA=+—
amount of the Company’s reserves B AA‘A#HSIETRE
available for distribution to shareholders L HEBEBBEHODARE
was approximately RMB241,902,000 241,902,0007T (ZEZE N
(2008: RMB109,478,000) computed in F . AR¥109,478,0007T)
accordance with the Companies Law TIBERSHERRE (ER]
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands and the R) RARRE)Z A RAHER
Company’s articles of association. This MAGE - BERBRERQA
includes the Company’s share premium e B8 & ARK
of approximately RMB347,368,000 347,368,000 (ZEZE N
(2008: RMB147,878,000) less translation & AR¥147,878,0007T)
reserve and accumulated losses of BBREFBR R EBEED 7
approximately RMB3,387,000 (2008: #) AR #¥3,387,0005T (==
RMB3,063,000) and RMB102,079,000 ZN\F : AR¥3 063,000
(2008: RMB35,337,000) respectively and 7t) M AR #102,079,0007T
is available for distribution provided that —EENEFE  ARK
immediately following the date on which 35,337,0007T) ° i EpEEZE
the dividend is proposed, the Company ISR N=- - /N
will be able to pay off its debts as they fall REMEEENBEESEHE
due in the ordinary course of business. H 2 &% - Bl EFIA A #

7K °
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35. EXKw#E @

35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(Continued)

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the
amount of reserves of subsidiaries that
have been capitalised as a result of the
merger.

General reserve

According to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, each of the PRC
subsidiaries is required to appropriate at
least 10% of its after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior year’s losses), based on the
PRC statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)
and financial regulations applicable to the
PRC enterprises, to the general reserve
until the balance of the fund reaches 50%
of the PRC subsidiary’s registered capital.
Thereafter, any further appropriation can
be made at the directors’ discretion.

The general reserve fund can be utilised
to offset the prior years’ losses, or be
utilised to increase the capital on the
condition that the general reserve shall be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the
registered capital after such increase.

c) REIMERBMN @

(i)

(iii)

Gl A

BOtERENRBARRA G
MBEREARZHRBESHR

— R E

RIEFEBBEREIIESR
EREMBLRNEE EF
EERR  ASBRERRQ
REAEN([RREE
A1) R B4 %@ M 2 B %
MR B 2 T BUEE 91 7%
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(Continued)

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iv) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(u).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefit for other
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher stakeholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as the Group’s bank and other borrowings and
promissory notes less cash and cash equivalents
over its equity.

c)

d)

35. EXKf#fE (&)
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

35. EXKf#fE (&)

(Continued)
d) Capital management (Continued) d XEXEE®
The details of the net debt to equity ratio of the AEEFARHEEREEZFBEN
Group is as follows:
2009 2008
—EZThE —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR T ARETF T
Bank and other borrowings 17 & H b &K 32 65,000 40,000
Promissory notes & R 33 51,296 —
Less: Cash and o Re R
cash equivalents HeEEY 29 (96,292) (32,215)
Net debt FEE 20,004 7,785
Total equity BREES 269,849 120,130
Total capital BE R 289,853 127,915
Net debt to equity ratio FAEEEES X 6.90% 6.09%

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 July
2003 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards
to eligible persons for their contributions to the Group.
The Scheme will expire on 27 July 2013. Under the
Scheme, the Company may grant options to any person
who is a director or an employee (whether full-time or
part-time) of the Group or any entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest, or any class of supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser, manager or officer of the
Group or any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interest.

36.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME coniinved)  36. BBRRESTE »)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed ten percent. of the total shares of the Company
in issue from time to time. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed thirty percent.
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
from time to time. The total number of shares issued
and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each eligible person in any 12-month period
must not exceed one per cent. of the total shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of options in excess
of the individual limit must be subject to shareholders’
approval.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant. In respect of option holders
other than suppliers and customers, option may be
exercised, which shall commence 1 year from the date
on which that option is granted and shall expire on the
earlier of the last day of (i) a 10-year period from the
date of such grant and (ii) 10 years from 28 July 2003.
In respect of option holders who are suppliers and
customers, such period shall commence on the date of
grant and expire 1 year thereafter. The subscription price
is determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation interests on the date of grant of that option,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation interests for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of that option; and (c) the nominal value for the time
being of each share of the Company. There are no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2009 and
2008.
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
participate in a mandatory central pension scheme
organised by the PRC government for certain of its
employees, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group. Contributions made are based on a
percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and are
charged to the consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
scheme. The employer’s contributions vest fully once
they are made.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of
existing and retired employees are payable by the
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

The aggregate amounts of employer’s contributions by
the Group in respect of retirement benefits scheme dealt
with in the consolidated income statement for the year
are disclosed in note 7(a) to these financial statements.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes
for its employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong and the PRC. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2009 and 2008
in respect of the retirement of its employees.
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WK E A

On 3 July 2009, the Group acquired 100% equity N-ZEZENF+H=H  AEEFBESINO
]icntergstdin Allided tRLEh dGroug, thfrough Sinltijretalsure;c Treasure[AIB T E=HWEKS @ >
rom independent third parties for a consideration o o

approximpately HK$20%,163,000 (equivalent to l_OOMjf?:Em '\TSE’%W%Z%J_EB’OO\O’%
approximately RMB178,841,000), satisfied by T HERHAKIRL78,841,0007T) » LK
promissory notes of approximately HK$55,691,000 5 ER R #)55,691,000/8 7T (FEERHARKE
(equivalent to approximately RMB49,024,000) and 49,024,0007T) & A2 F]245,786,516/% X
245,786,516 consideration shares of the Company BIRD £ Z#4147,472,0007% 7T (FHE R 49
amounting to approximately HK$147,472,000 AE#129 817,0007T) (&1 - B EE@EE
(equivalent to approximately RMB129,817,000). Allied S ERYEE LB TR EEE

Rich Group is mainly engaged in sales of piped natural e e s
GRETEHEE o S &= S
gas in Beiliu City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, ABRHE « WRREE At BEZS

the PRC. This acquisition has been accounted for by B o
the purchase method of accounting.

Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
immediately
before Fair value Fair
combination adjustments values
RESOAE
WER 2 REE AFERE YN
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment I E B
(note 17) (FrEE17) 45,835 565 46,400
Prepaid lease payments for land REROTEN
under operating leases (note 18) TS (isE18) 8,991 9 9,000
Intangible assets BYEE
— Exclusive right for piped natural — BEBRARES
gas operation (note 19) ZBRER (F:E19) — 70,470 70,470
Inventories FE 1,212 — 1,212
Trade and other receivables R 0 B 5 I L At e LR 11,683 — 11,683
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁi&ﬁ%—rﬁ% 1,029 — 1,029
Trade and other payables & 1<) BR 50 I L At FE A 3R (4,378) — (4,378)
Bank borrowings BITER (13,000) — (13,000)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34(b)) BETIR B & (P EE34(b) — (17,761) (17,761)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities AEREERARBRE 51,372 53,283 104,655
Minority interests DY (2,616)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 15) B e (HE15) 76,802
Consideration RE 178,841
Total consideration satisfied by: BREATIISBEER
Promissory notes (note 33) #H 2 (15E33) 49,024
Consideration shares RERN 129,817

178,841

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: ~ WEESIZRZHE&HAFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EGzReRReEEYD 1,029
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(Continued)

Allied Rich Group contributed a loss of approximately
RMB3,565,000 to the Group’s results for the period from
date of acquisition to 31 December 2009.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2009, the Group’s total revenue for the year would have
been approximately RMB93,806,000 and loss for the
year would have been approximately RMB62,260,000.
The proforma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2009, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Allied Rich
Group is attributable to an unexpected rise in the price
of the Company between the agreement date and
acquisition date; and the anticipated profitability
generated from the synergy through economies of scale
and sharing of resources, and future market
development through vertical integration of downstream
natural gas business. Allied Rich Group has experienced
management, personnel, marketing and technical staff
who enable efficient operation of the Group. The benefit
from these factors are not recognised separately from
goodwill as the future economic benefits arising from
them cannot be reliably measured.
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
trading securities, trade and other payables, bank and
other borrowings. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk
and equity price risk arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

a) Credit risk

i) As at 31 December 2009, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance.

i) In respect of trade and other receivables,
in order to minimize risk, the management
has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on
each major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the
customers as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customers operate. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 30 to
180 days from the date of billing.

39.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT MEEEEREE

= RBUR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%)
(Continued)
a)  Credit risk (Continued) a) FERK®
i) (Continued) i) (&)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is rEBEH 2 EERRE
influenced mainly by the individual :‘%E}E‘Z15Uﬁ,¥5%% °
characteristics of each customer. The BEPEEBITENREBIE

default risk of the industry and country in
which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group has a certain concentration of
credit risk as 13.09% (2008: 5.84%) and
39.81% (2008: 24.16%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

Zl%zzi,%’]}ﬁk BRI EE
BRETE  ERERK -
BAaﬁB%iHH?E REBEEFER
BEFR DR ARKAS B &
j:%;ﬁ&ﬂk%)fzrﬁ“uﬂzﬁ
G EBEE213.09% (= F
?/\i : 5.84%) &%39.81%
(ZZEZENF : 24.16%) °

Further quantitative disclosures in respect BEAASEER B RBKER K
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk HtEKRRIBZEERR 2
arising from trade and other receivables EEBRBEHNHE26 -

are set out in note 26.

i)  The majority of the Group’s trading iy AEBRBHEZIEHAR
securities are blue chips listed on a RABFRGM LM 2EE
recognised stock exchange. Given their Kk-ERHEaEETR &
high credit standing, management does BEYWEEBPTMEESF
not expect any investment counterparty hemEERITEE R
to fail to meet its obligations.

iv)  The credit risk on liquid funds is limited iv) HAREFIHREEREE
because the counterparties are banks with -? ﬁ&*ﬁ% BERTEEEFHZ
high credit ratings assigned by CHRBESZEE
international credit-rating agencies. Mﬁﬁﬁ ®
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to board
approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group relies on bank and other
borrowings as a source of liquidity.

Also as mentioned in note 2(b)(ii), the Group (1)
has extended the repayment term of the other
borrowings; (2) obtained an undertaking from Mr.
Wang Zhong Sheng not to demand for the
repayment of the amount due to him until the
Group is financially viable to do so; (3) obtained
undertaking from Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng to
provide adequate financial support to the Group;
and (4) raised a net proceeds of approximately
RMB35,828,000 by way of share placement
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
All of the above steps have been enable the
Group to mitigate its liquidity risk.

39.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(AAR®ZIE)

MBREREER

2R BUR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES ()
(Continued)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b) RBEERER @)
The following liquidity table sets out the weighted INTRBEREEHIAEE KK
average effective interest rate and the remaining NAEIZeMBERRE HR 2 &
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting $i’:] ERMERBRTELHE - HE
period of the Group’s and the Company’s financial REHNRMBRER (BEEAEH
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted ﬂ Ky (IRZR)RBERARZE
cash flows (including interest payments TRERAEZFESFIE) MEE © N
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, FAREBRAARBATEEZRSE
based on rates current at the end of the reporting HER
period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company is required to pay:
2009 2008
=t 3 K3 —Z2Z)E
Weighted More than More than Total Weighted More than More than Total
average Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut  contractual average Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted effective 1yearor less than less than  undiscounted
interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow Carrying interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow Carrying
mEYY  -FAAEE —ElL MENL  ANAEER amount nErs  -EndEE —EHE RENE  BHRER amount
RBAE EXRE  REMR EFNR RERAE REE LTS EXHE  WENR RENR ReREE BEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ABMTR ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETR
The Group 350
Trade payables JERER NAFER 9,515 - - 9,515 9,515 NATER 858 - - 858 858
Amounts due EREETE
to directors NAFER 1,548 - - 1,548 1,548 10.00% 2,037 - — 22,037 22,037
Amount due to Eft-%08
a minority
sharefolder RR3E NA FER 1,569 - - 1,569 1,569 NIA TR = = = = =
Accrued salaries ke NAFER 1,388 - - 1,388 1,388 NATER 4219 - - 4219 4219
Payables for acquisiton E#% -
of property, plnt ~ BER&SE
and equipment ER3E NARER 47,910 - - 47,910 47910 NATER 10943 - - 10943 10943
Acorued expenses  EEEE
and other payables  RAMBENFE | NATER 2,037 - - 2,037 2037 NIA TR 5070 - - 5,070 5,070
Bank and RAREMBER
other borrowings 7.66% 52,995 5,767 8,144 66,906 65,000 7.12% 40,460 - - 40,460 40,000
Promissory notes RRER 10.05% - 59,215 - 59,215 51,29 NATER — — — — —
116,962 64,982 8,144 190,088 180,263 83,587 - — 83,587 83,127
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT BERERREEBEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

39.

(&
(Continued)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b) REELER @)
2009 208
= k3 ZEINE
Weighted More than More than Total Weighted More than More than Total
average Within lyearbut  2yearsbut  contractual average Within Lyearbut  2yearsbut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted effective 1 year or [ess than less than  undiscounted
interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow Carrying interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow Carrying
nEYY  -FRIER —F0Lk WENE  AKAER amount METY  -ERAER —FhE RENE  BHARR amount
BBR% EREE WENR BENR  RERAE REE EiE ERRE MEHA BEHR  REREE HEf
RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
The Company 9|
Amounts due EREENE
to directors NA FEE 731 - - 731 731 10.00% 0851 = = 20851 20851
Accrued expenses  FEHFIX
and other payables  REMEMFE | NATER 954 - - 954 954 NIA T 4 - - 74 742
Promissory notes AL ER 10.05% - 59,215 - 59,215 51,296 NIA FE R - - - - -
1,685 50,215 - 60,900 52,981 21,593 = = 21,593 2159
c) Interest rate risk c) FEEPB
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate AEEHRY s BAeRENEEA R
. . . . P A =+ ~
risk in relation to cash and cash equivalents, RERBFLFEY  RITIFHAK
. . 4= =+
bank deposits and bank and other borrowings. RITREAE AR -
i) Interest rate profile i) FI =485
The following table details the interest rate TRFVNAEEBRRN RS
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the R Z MR
end of the reporting period:
The Group
AL
2009 2008
—EENE —ZETN\F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
BB = BIRA =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
Fixed rate borrowings:  ElEFI R &5 :
Other loans HAth & 3K 6.83% 50,000 7.12 40,000
Floating rate borrowings: /% B F S48 5 -
Bank loans IRITER 7.88% 15,000 | N/A Ti& M8 —
Total borrowings BIE R 65,000 40,000
Fixed rate borrowings [ E & &%
as a percentage of I RRIE R
total borrowings ZBADE 77% 100%
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis

All of the cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits and bank and other borrowings
of the Group which are fixed rate
instruments are insensitive to any change
in interest rates. A change in interest rates
at the end of the reporting period would
not affect profit or loss.

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that
a general increase or decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase
or decrease the Group’s loss after income
tax by approximately RMB81,000 (2008:
RMB23,000). Other components of
consolidated statement of changes in
equity would not change in response to
the general increase or decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the end of next
reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2008.

390. IR REEEERBEE

(%)

c)

M=mb &)

ii)

BREDN

AEERMBRERREF
Y RTEFERRBEETLA
ZIRITREME - HF K

HA PR 2 ) R 88 8 39 )4 M) S S
BIBREE -

R-ZFBFEAF+T_A=1T—
B A AREB EFRT
BR100fEER, - mPrA H A A
BERERTRE @ BLAE
B B AT 15 A 12 B 1R 4B AN SOR
PRIAR 81,0007 (ZFE
NF + AR¥23,0007T) ° 47
BREEBRAE M AR
A EEMEERE EAHT

bt R 3 AT TH R E A K
RARZ AR ENDT & R IEDT
e r T ARFNEER © 100
BEEEN EFHTH®EER
EEEHEET - ERSH
REVEIRE B A R 5 32 A] g &
BEE - RO MR—FF
NFZHREEETT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

d)

Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving RMB must take place through The
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rate adopted for foreign
exchange transactions are the rates of exchange
quoted by the PBOC that would be subject to a
managed float against an unspecified basket of
currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the
remittance of earnings outside the PRC, are
subject to the availability of foreign currency
(which depends on the foreign currency
denominated earnings of the Group) or must be
arranged through the PBOC with government
approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of the
Group are transacted in RMB. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk on financing
transactions denominated in currencies other
than RMB. Depreciation or appreciation of the
RMB against foreign currencies can affect the
Group’s results. The Group did not hedge its
currency exposure.

39. IEREERERBEE

(%)

EXER

ARBIRIBALBRRING - 7
BRARE ZINER B B BT
BARRT([FREARRT)) K
il B B IMNE 2 B HETT  BLHD
EXSHRAZERSPEARRT
Rz ER  BHERKRE &
FRAEIAZEENREEHENRN
FE) e

SNERNR - BREENEL PR
RTINS RIS (SNSRI
FAREEASNESINE 2 BA S F) K
VAEBFHETNEETBRARE
BES &

AEBRAEEWRSEZRBTEAA
REETRS - AREFUFEAR
BEBINEZRERZEAEINER
o ARBHINERZESTE |
N BBIREE 24 - AEEL
EHPEHEERAR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

d)  Currency risk (Continued)
i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s and
the Company’s exposure to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group

39. IEREERERBEE

(%)

EME (B

i) B R i

TRAFLAEENARRE
ERUEEBE NG
Bz EREELBE M

EZEBRR -

REE

Exposure to foreign currency (expressed in RMB)

SR RAE (UARYSIE)
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
United United
States Hong Kong States  Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
EYH BT £ BT
'000 '000 '000 '000
Fr Fr T T
Trade and other JE K BR R e Eo At
receivables e IR — 9,547 — 60
Cash and cash Re kB[
equivalents ZEY 10 35,436 10 10,515
Overall exposure to B =
currency risk BREAEE 10 44,983 10 10,575
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. MK EKREEEBEREEK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%)
(Continued)
d)  Currency risk (Continued) d KRR @
i) Exposure to currency risk i) E¥EREE (&)
(Continued)
The Company bINYNE

Exposure to foreign currency (expressed in RMB)

SR RAE (UARYIIE)
2009 2008
—EENEF ZEENF
United United
States Hong Kong States  Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
E BT ET BT
'000 000 '000 ‘000
Fr Tr T T
Cash and cash BekRe
equivalents ZEY 10 32,207 10 554
Overall exposure to B E R
currency risk B RIER 10 32,207 10 554
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39. IEREERERBEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

d)

Currency risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
approximate change in the Group’s loss
after income tax and accumulated losses
in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period.

(%)

d E¥EkK @

i) SBREDHK

TRFEFALAEERREHR
BEREAAERCEXRZA
BECEHHAKERRAE
BB ERRFTBEZHEO

28 -

The Group REE
2009 2008
“2ENE Z2ENEF
Increase/ Effect on loss Increase/  Effect on loss
(decrease) after income (decrease)  after income
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange  accumulated
rate losses rate losses
HERFEH% HBRMER%
ExEm/ HERRT | EXgn/ BERRH
(i) BEY (i) BEYE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
United States Dollars xT 5% 1 5% 1
(5)% (1) (5)% (1)
Hong Kong Dollars BT 5% 2,249 5% 529
(5)% (2,249) (5)% (529)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

d)  Currency risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the Group’s exposure to currency
risk for financial instruments in existence at
that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.
Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
effects on each of the Group entities’ loss
after income tax. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the end
of next reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2008.

e)  Equity price risk

i)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
in respect of investments held by the
Group which are classified as trading
securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on securities listed on the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments
are held for long term strategic purposes.
Their performance is assessed at least bi-
annually against performance of similar
listed entities, based on the limited
information available to the Group,
together with an assessment of their
relevance to the Group’s long term
strategic plans.

MBREREER

= RBUR

(&)
d E¥Ek @
ii) BRE D (&)
I BRE 5T T RER E
“@Fﬁiﬁxaﬁiiﬁ
ARASEERZBEREZ S
RMITAE¥RERMER @ ™

%EE@&@ LE R
?’ﬁﬁTﬁot%%WZ
DPMERRREBAREER
RS RREBEZERS
R DEENAIERE G
ERREET —EHREHR
IHHHZzAEEEES - B
A MRE T N\FHR
ZEAEHET -

e RERMR

i)

AEBEEAZERALER
Eﬁ% 255 B RRER
ke - EEECD BRI RER
ku&ﬁ@Auf%%ﬂ
@ o NEBERRERRET
x¢ﬁE%§%&t/m%
R B LTS

REBMBERERE R
REARBENMEHE - 58
WEZRBERBEARNEER] &
BZERER  SMFHERF
EEMERESHGE T
T FEFEASEERERE
T8l MR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

39. IEREERERBEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

e)  Equity price risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that
an increase or decrease of 5% (2008: 5%)
in the relevant stock market index with all
other variables held constant, would have
decreased or increased the Group’s loss
after income tax (and accumulated losses)
as follows:

(%)

e) RERBE #®)

ii)

BREDWN

R_ZETNFF+_A=+—
B - {hET BT e & LA
H 5% (ZEE)\F
5%) M AT Efh B HEFT
B BERAKEFFMRKAE
RiigE1E (R RTEE) B
M -

The Group REE
2009 2008
“2ENE Z2ENEF
Effect on loss Effect on loss
after income after income
tax and tax and
accumulated accumulated
losses losses
HERREH% HBRmEHR%
BEER AR BRERRR
BEY EEYE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR®EFT
Change in the relevant  HBBIRER K
equity price Y2
risk variable:
Increase byl 5% (29) 5% (77)
Decrease i (5)% 29 (5)% 77
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

e)

Equity price risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after income tax (and accumulated losses)
that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock market index or other
relevant risk variables had occurred at the
end of reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at
the end of the reporting period. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index or
the relevant risk variable, that none of the
Group’s available-for-sale investments
would be considered impaired as a result
of the decrease in the relevant stock
market index or other relevant risk
variables, and that all other variables
remain amount. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2008.

MBREREER
()

e)

=RBUR

RERE M (&)
i) BBESWK ()

BRESWET - BEERT
B HMmEERREE 2
PHOERMERREL - I
EERARENRTERERR
EzemIA  M&ZEIA
LEREBRImEHAREARE
IRERB - BIEARNEEBRFT
SHEEE (RRFTEE)
SELEZAREE - RER
BAEERAKE 2 A FE
H%*Eﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%%(ﬁﬁﬁaﬂ

Eb Hﬁ;‘%lz—ﬁ,\ﬁ%&
BT 2R S HEBER T ER
T Bk Bk H 48 B LB B BT
WARRRE - ARPrAEAM
BEERTE - AN
/\_%@E/\EHHZ%E
T
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39. IEREERERBEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (&)
(Continued)
f) Fair value f) NFE
i) Financial instruments carried at fair i) BEAFEIERzEMIA

value

The following table presents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting
period across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with
the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement. The levels
are defined as follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

° Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on
observable market data.

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation
techniques in which any significant
input is not based on observable
market data.

TREIRNBEHR - BF
BYBREEMNEREBT
H WEREEZAFES
RHEZ=EEFRT - &R
FEIEz M TE ZRE
B HFSEEHIEZER
TAZRAFERZEERER
FEAEASAFEZRE
BWAER - BESFRAEW
™

«  BIRBHEH A
& B 5 o A
SETAYHE (R
) HEAT(E -

o F24: MREIAET
LHRBEUERIAZ
BE MEE2EH
ABBEEHFEEER
ABEEMSEE A
ERMAEAFE-

o EIREEFER : A
REREEZE AL I
ERAIBREM S HE
ZEERMGAERF
18-




TEBRRAEMERA T ' 177

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥ 2R B =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbl) 8E—ZE T hFE+ - A=+—HILFE AARKHIE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. MK EKREEEBEREEK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#&)
(Continued)
f) Fair value (Continued) f) AINE),
i) Financial instruments carried at fair i) BEAFEIERzZE®mMIA
value (Continued) (&)
2009 —EZhEF
The Group The Company
3 4] 5127

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
#18 28 #38 it £18 28 £3% it
RMBOO0 ~ RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB00 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Rssets EE

Trading securities 25%% 582 - = 582 - = - =
ii)  Fair values of financial instruments i) WHEZEAFEIRZEMT

carried at other than fair value Bz ¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and RZEZNFERZZETNF

the Company’s financial instruments +=—A=+—8 " XEEK

carried at cost or amortised cost are not NN B R B AN S8R pK AR B

materially different from their fair values R e TAZRAEEREA

as at 31 December 2009 and 2008. NEETEERER -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

9)

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values
of financial instruments.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, trade and
other payables

The carrying amounts approximate their
fair values because of the short maturity
of these items.

Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period
without any deduction for transaction
costs. Fair values for the unquoted equity
investments are estimated using the
applicable price/earning ratios for similar
listed companies adjusted for the specific
circumstances of the issuer.

Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at
current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

B RREEE
()

=RBUR

i ATE

X AR AR 2 TARFE
ZEZTTEFRER °

ii)

(iii)

Iﬁ%&ﬁ%’*fﬁ% P& W B
MR EHMERRE - BNYR
R ELAth PB4 5ROR

HRZEEB ZEHAAR
o REZRAEREAQF
=REES

RN ET RS E R ®RT
B (R R BMA) 5 E ©
R ERERSREZ AT
B - HERBLUETAE
ZERMAE (LEREETA
Zﬁk’i/ﬂﬁﬁf’ﬁuﬂ 7 ) flh

NP ERARREREZR
BEmfdE - ARABL SR
TRZBITHIHNERSER -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. i EBREEEEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%)

(Continued)

g)  Estimation of fair values (Continued) g (hstAFE @R
(iv) Interest rates used for determining (ivy AREBEEAFEZR=E

fair value
The entity uses the government yield FRAERBNA-_ZTNF T
curve as of 31 December 2009 plus an “ A=+ —HZBFEER
adequate constant credit spread to BMERAzEFREEEE
discount financial instruments. The mMTEEMTE - FIERAZ
interest rates used are as follows: FEMTF
2009 2008
—EZThEF —ZTENF
Loans and borrowings B R ER 4.50% - 6.63% -
9.82% 7.13%
40. MAJOR NON-CASH 40. T EFRERSH

TRANSACTIONS

a)  The consideration for acquisition of Allied Rich a) FAREREEE RESFEEARL
Group during the year comprised promissory EBRERERD - BRANKE 2 #—
notes and consideration shares. Further details FHBEHN IS -
of the acquisition are set out in note 38.

b) During the year, 371,308,507 ordinary shares b) FAN BB ARAESEFABET
were issued by way of Open Offer, in which 371,308,507 @Ak - H&
consideration of 174,943,445 offer shares was 174,943,448 B E /%0 < REThiE
satisfied by a discharge of the Company from its BEERAARIENERBEEEZ
payment obligation in respect of the amount due RBZNREEMERN - 2REE
to Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng. Further details of the ZE— S FHBERMIFEI5 D) ©

Open Offer are set out in note 35(b).
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MAJOR NON-CASH
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

40.

41.

c)

As at 31 December 2009, additions of property,
plant and equipment of approximately
RMB38,326,000 were not yet settled and the
balance was recognised as trade and other
payables in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

COMMITMENTS

a)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
authorised capital commitments contracted but

40. FE}FBRERZ @

c) RIZEZAF+-_A=+—H 9%
X BELRBIEENHDARE
38326OOOTEFJ]5H R BRA&EHR
REFE MR R AR QRN R
KK E A FE FRIE -

41. FEIE

a) R|MEHR ARERPHERERD
RIAIMER Bt 2 B LB A AR

not provided for in the financial statements as m
follows:
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EEBNEF —ETENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETFT
Contracted for: B2ET4Y ¢
— Plant and equipment — HRRF 55,506 85,400
— Construction in progress — EETIE 168 11,806
— Intangible assets —EREE 1,181 1,981
56,855 99,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

41. EIE @)

41. COMMITMENTS (continued)

RBEHR  BERREDEZD
AIRGHEEMRNA T 2 KRR EMN R
BEEFBAEWNT :

b) At the end of the reporting period, the total future b)
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of office premises are
payable as follows:

The Group The Company
rEE KA
2009 2008 2009 2008
TERBRAEF | ZZ22N\F | ZBBAF | 22 N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000 | RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | A\RETT | AR TR | ARETT
Within 1 year 1A 586 528 506 462
After 1 year but within 112 E5F A

5 years 29 — — —
After 5 years AEMNE — — — —
615 528 506 462

AEBRZEARBEEHOBA L
MEZABA - DIZHBA BB —
E=F - BREHNERNE GRE
EEBEENRY  c ZEHOMER

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number
of properties held under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 3
years, with an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
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42,

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
pledged the following assets to secure bank borrowings
granted to the Group:

42. EEEKH

RBEYR - AEBR/AREER 2 RIT

fERMEHR NIEE :

The Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Buildings held for own use (note 17(a)(i)) #F1EB A2 EF (HIsE17(a)ii) 2,409 —
Pipelines (note 17(a)(ii)) &8 (FrE17(a)ii) 38,850 —

Prepaid lease payments for land LERHTIEN AL

under operating leases (note 18) (F7x18) 10,295 =
51,554 —

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 43. EXBEAEALIRS

TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following material related
party transactions.

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, the
directors are of the view that the following are related
parties of the Group:

Name of party Relationship

EFEMALZIBEEH  Effectively 75% owned by
BEBRAR] Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng and
("EBEEM) Mr. Shi Liang and effectively
managed by key
management personnel of
the Group.
BEYR Effectively 8% owned by the

Group and ultimately
controlled by an independent
third party with 58% equity
interests, while /&8 E A also
held 17% equity interests.

AEEDTLTINBEABEALRS -

BE_TENFR-_ZFTNF+_A=+
—BLEFE  EFRB NISHRAEE

ZHE AT

EBEEEE &

BEAREMNKE mELABELER

BRARAT == 50 A A R,

(TEAEEM]) B 75%3 /B
AREFTFEEIE
ABEBMEIE o

BEWR MAEBA B ES
8%t i 5 58%
PEANEZS 2 B
B BREE
i EREMRINEE

17% M8 A% o
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43. EXRBEALIRS @)

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@ Recurring transactions (a KEMRS

Particulars of significant transactions between the BEZEZNFEERZZEENF+=
Group and the above related parties for the years A=+—HLFE AEEH L5
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 and BEALTZRARTERBESETZ

expected to continue are as follows: BEARGFHIBWT
Name of party Nature of transaction 2009 2008
EBRLEW REMHE —EEhF —ETENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
BEMR Delivery expenses of
liquefied coalbed gas
BICE B R 2 (T8 2,925 —
Wang Zhong Sheng Interest expenses
T BB MERX 1,404 1,844

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above related transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary course of business. The directors
have confirmed that the above transactions will
continue in the future.

ARREFZRS  LHBERHTY
REFBERGERLR AT ERKBE
FHET EFE®R - LARHH
RARRAEBHET -

(b) Non-recurring transactions (b) FLEMRS
Name of party Nature of transaction 2009 2008
FRASHER REME ZEBAF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBETTT

Wang Zhong Sheng Underwriting commission

Eapieyi BiHME

1,338 —

Subject to the underwriting agreement dated 8 July
2009 in relation to Open Offer mentioned in note
35(b), a undertaking commission of 2.5% of the
aggregate subscription price of 304,165,650 offer
shares was paid by the Company to Mr. Wang
Zhong Sheng, as underwriter. The amount was
charged to the share premium as transaction costs
for issuance of new shares.

KISt A A —STNEF
+tANBEBARBRE Z BHHE
FTAERT ARRERBHEEER
P 5 A 2 154304, 165,6508% 3 & i 15
BRBEZ25%EREFZRE -8
AeBEERRNEETNR - 1EA
BITHBRD Z R HEA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

43. EXRBEALIRS @)

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Balances with related parties

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group
and the Company had the following balances with

related parties:

(i) Amount due from a related company

- 4 S
EEYR

(c) HEEALZ4EER
R_ZBZENFR_ZFZF+_A=
+—H8  AEERARTHEBEA
A THI&EeR
() ER—XEEARMKE

The Group The Company
rEH AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAEF | 22T N\F | ZEEAF | 22T N\F
RMB’000| RMB'0O00| RMB’000| RMB’'000
ARBTFRT|ARETT | ARETT | ARETTT
3,610 — 3,074 —

Amount due from & E YR represents
prepayments for provision of delivery
service of liquefied coalled gas. The
amount was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. There was no
provision made on the amount as at 31

December 2009 and 2008.

JEU B YR FOR R R R B [
R2TBRGE 2EMNFHIE - BEE

%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*

% 8.3 A 8 B R

B -R-ZBZENFR_FFNFT
“RA=+—HB IERZSHEEL

i e
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 43. EXRBEALIRS @)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EHBEALZHER &)
(Continued)
(i) Amounts due to directors (i) ENESEE
The Group The Company
rEE AR T
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEANF | ZTTN\F | ZBBAF | T2 N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR | ARETL | AR TR | ARETT
Wang Zhong Sheng T & i 817 20,041 — 18,855
Shi Liang i) 350 1,400 350 1,400
Kwok Shun Tim L4 F 316 348 316 348
Yan Chang Ming EE=E! — 97 — 97
Luo Wei Kun BEE 11 97 11 97
Pang Yuk Fong A 54 54 54 54
1,548 | 22,037 731| 20,851
As at 31 December 2009, the amounts RZZEENF+ZRA=+—H" &
are unsecured, interest-free, and HeBAEER  RELEAEEX
repayable on demand. B -
As at 31 December 2008, the amounts RZZBENF+ZA=+—H" ' &
were unsecured, repayable on demand e B AEEA //\F'?fzzjﬂ B R
and interest-free except for the amount %8 MR E RBP4 2 FRIBL
due to Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng of AR #11,439,0007T B 1% F 5| =
approximately RMB11,439,000, which 10%:t 8. °

bears interest at 10% per annum.

(iii) Amount due to a minority (iii) EN—BLHEBRERE
shareholder

The amount is unsecured, interest-free EHEeEAEERT 2B
and repayable on demand. AREEREE -
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AL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

43. EXRBEALIRS @)

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Key management personnel
emoluments

Emoluments for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 9 and certain of
the highest paid employees as disclosed in note
10 are as follows:

(d)

TEEBEAEZHH

TREEABZHEM (BRERME
BREZNTARREETZHE - &
REZIORBEz ETHREHMES
ZEBI T

The Group
rEH

2009 2008
—EEhEF —ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Short-term employee benefits 52 Bi{E B & F 4,849 4,634
Post-employment benefits B REA — —
4,849 4,634

44. NON-ADJUSTING POST
BALANCE SHEET EVENT

(a)

On 9 February 2010, the Company, as vendor,
and the promissory note-holders (the
“Purchasers”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose 100% the equity interest
in Shine Science BVI Group, at a consideration
of RMB60,000,000. Shine Science BVI Group is
principally engaged in the development and sales
of computer software, resale of computer
hardware, provision of system integration and
maintenance services in the PRC. The
consideration will be satisfied by each of the
Purchasers in proportion to their respective
interests in the sale shares on the date of
completion by a discharge of the Company from
its payment obligations under the promissory notes
as stated in note 33. The completion of the disposal
of Shine Science BVI Group would be subject to
the approval of the owners of the Company at the
Company’s extraordinary general meeting.

44. FAEMEERERSIE

RZZE—ZTF_ANA » ARF (E
RED) EAHLZEBEFBEA(ER]D)
AIVEEWH&E  WEHEShine
Science BVI% B 2 100% Ak AN i 25 -
KRB A AR¥60,000,0007T ° Shine
Science BVI& B+ Z4 = S EHF
FEMEE ENEHEE - £9
BRIt R R B A MR - B
REZEMAFRAEZEFRTEXB
HREESERHEERD 2B
Bl fRBR AR BIAR IR MY FE33 P 2
HAZEE ZNREME - HEShine
Science BVIEE B EFARRHESR
ARKRBRREFR RS L&
% - FRIERK ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Renminbi) #E —EZENF+-_A=+—HILFE (RAREZIE)

44. NON-ADJUSTING POST 44, FEABMEEHEREE »
BALANCE SHEET EVENT (continued)

(b)  Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, (b) MIEHERE BIZZFE—ZF_A
on 24 February 2010, the Company, Mr. Wang —+WmHA - ARAE - TRBEER
Zhong Sheng and Jumbo Lane Investments EERERRARI([EE]) (REAR
Limited (“Jumbo Lane”), a company beneficially BreEBEmEa 2 R) B—RiE
owned by Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, entered into REBEIZRERREBHZ - 1L
a placing and subscription agreement with a (1)¥ZER%0.1528 TTic E 0 Al T &
placing agent for; (1) the placement of e REEH A 263,690,0000%
63,690,000 and 208,670,000 ordinary shares of 1.208,670,0008% A~ &) 38 A% ([H2
the Company owned by Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng ) RQOEEBLEERBEDR
and Jumbo Lane respectively at a price of ENRZRER0.152F TRE
HK$0.152 per share (“the Placing”); and (2) Mr. 63,690,000% X&208,670,000% A8 A
Wang Zhong Sheng and Jumbo Lane have agreed AIFEER ([RE]) - BERRE
to subscribe for 63,690,000 and 208,670,000 BERRR-_TE—ZEF=HA—AB K=
new ordinary shares of the Company respectively T—ZEF=ANBEKX - RIEZFT
at a price of HK$0.152 per share (the B RIEFE#) 540,790,000 7t (8
“Subscription”). The Placing and Subscription ER# AR #35,828,0007T) °

were completed on 1 March 2010 and 8 March
2010 respectively. The net proceeds from the
Subscription amount to approximately
HK$40,790,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB35,828,000).

45. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 45. L EEF
Certain comparative figures have been re-classified in HETHRBEFEEN»E  UREAFE
conformity to the current year’s presentation of the MIERMERZEFT A o

financial statements.

46. IMMEDIATE PARENT AND 46. EERARIRBRAERA
ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
At 31 December 2009, the directors consider the RZBEZNF+_A=+—H ' E=RAE
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the REEEEG QA RKKERT REE -
Group to be Jumbo Lane, which is incorporated in BVI. —RRABRZHEESEMHINAT - &F
Jumbo Lane does not produce financial statements BWERIEARER 2 A FRE -

available for public use.
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[ |
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFHBERE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE T T NF+_A=+—HIFE
RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1-HILEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—ZENE —EENF “ETtF ZETRF “TThEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT ARETTT ARETTL ARETR
Turnover EER 92,034 38,598 49,399 25,773 31,246
(Loss)/profit before B PR3 i Al
income tax (BR) /&7 (54,568) (33,261) 965 (6,618) 1,399
Income tax Pr{SHt (4,262) (324) (3,465) 27 (461)
(Loss)/profit AEE
for the year (B#8),/&F (58,830) (33,58b) (2,500) (6,591) (938)
Attributable to: TRk
Owners of the ARREBA
Company (58,741) (33,585) (2,500) (6,591) 938
Minority interests D EURREz (89) — = = —
(Loss)/profit AEE
for the year (B#8),/&F (58,830) (33,585) (2,500) (6,591) 938
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
At 31 December
R+=A=+-A
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—ZENE —EENF “ETtF ZETRF “TThEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETTL ARETL ARETR
Total assets BEE 545,025 239,139 162,649 57,100 60,032
Total liabilities BEfE (275,176) (119,009) (55,990) (14,772) (10,651)
Minority interests D SRRz (2,527) — — — (155)
Equity attributable 7R &]
to owners of the ~ HEAA
Company FEfh s 267,322 120,130 106,659 42,328 49,226







